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Corporate Profile

ARV

Headquartered in Hong Kong, VXL Capital Limited is an Innovative
Concept Developer in Asia with a special emphasis on the Greater China

region.

In view of the PRC’s growing Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and booming
property sector, the Group is principally engaged in Property Investment
and is focused on becoming a trusted Property Investment Partner in

China.

The Group is dedicated to build a strong and diverse property portfolio
generating consistent rental income and great capital appreciation by
strategically positioning the Group through smart partnership, acquisition
and self development. Given the rapid growth of the PRC’s tourism industry,
the Group is also eyeing the vast development potential of budget hotels. It
has been actively acquiring hotel properties throughout the PRC, and aims

to build a genuine budget hotel brand.

The Group will also venture into Innovative Concept Development. “Concept
Development” means that the Group identifies underserved, high-potential
markets that typically require a visionary business concept and focused

investment to create high returns for investors and shareholders.

VXL Capital is backed by a team of highly skilled personnel with excellent
local knowledge and influential contacts throughout the PRC and beyond.
By capitalizing on its strong business networks and well-established joint
venture partnerships, VXL Capital is exceptionally well-positioned to tap
into the extensive business opportunities arising from the opening of the

PRC market and from strong Asian economic growth as a whole.
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OUR MISSION:

e To proactively seek out and develop strategic investment opportunities

in emerging growth industries

e To deliver value-added investment opportunities, and manage risk,

through professional expertise and comprehensive business networks

e To attract the best people, and develop their full potential through

teamwork and performance excellence

e  To enhance value to the local community by introducing innovative

ideas and demonstrating inspired foresight
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Chairman’s Statement

R

Dear Shareholders,

I 'am pleased to announce the audited consolidated Financial Results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the fifteen months ended

31 March 2007.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, turnover increased by 350%
to HK$33.9 million. The growth in turnover was due to a remarkable increase
in corporate advisory fees and rental income generated from 112 Apartments.
Rental income from 112 Apartments grew by 278% to HK$10.0 million for
the fifteen months period, while the income of the financial services business,
with a turnover of HK$22.0 million, rose by 346%. In line with the rise in
turnover, operating expenses increased by 104% for the reporting period.
During the reporting period, the Group has increased resources in the
Property and Corporate Finance divisions for the Changshou Properties and
the growing business in the financial sectors. The Group has taken additional
new office premises for the expansion. As a result, staff costs, office rental
payments, legal and professional costs and consultancy fees had increased

as compared to last financial year.

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders was HK$63.5 million,
representing an increase of fifteen times compared to that in the previous
financial year. The strong performance in the fifteen months was primarily
attributed to the capital appreciation, net of deferred tax, of the Group’s
retail properties in Shanghai, Changshou Properties, totaling approximately

HK$100.3 million.

The Board of Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE
DEVELOPMENT

PROPERTY INVESTMENT
CHANGSHOU PROPERTIES: Retail spaces in Shanghai

The acquisition of Changshou Properties was completed in the first quarter
of 2007. A renovation plan to enhance the retail spaces was mapped out. A
professional task force has been engaged in monitoring the progress of the
renovation, which is scheduled for completion by the fourth quarter of 2007.
The properties are expected to start contributing revenue to the Group in

2008.

Despite a series of measures introduced by the Chinese Government recently
to cool down the economy, the macro-economic environment remains
favorable and the GDP of the PRC, which amounted to RMB20,941 billion,
grew by 10.7% in 2006. Retail sales in Shanghai are also strong, rising by
13% to RMB336 billion in 2006. The growth was the largest since 1998.

The positive sentiment on the retail market in the PRC was reflected in the
considerable capital appreciation of Changshou Properties located at Putuo
District, one of the central urban zones in north-west Shanghai. The 6-storey
retail spaces (total gross floor area: approximately 41,000 sq.m.) will soon be
repositioned as a unique shopping mall after major renovation, which is
expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2007. The revenue to be
generated by Changshou Properties is expected to become one of the key

income streams for the Group in 2008.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
R

112 APARTMENTS: Serviced apartment tower in Hong Kong

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, rental income and occupancy
rate of 112 Apartments improved and contributed stable revenue to the
Group owing to an increase in the demand for serviced apartments in prime
locations. As of 31 March 2007, 112 Apartments registered an improved
occupancy rate of 89.6%, compared to 64% as of 31 December 2005. In light
of the positive market response, rental rate of 112 Apartments has increased

within the range of 9% to 17% in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Expatriates have given rise to a strong demand for serviced apartments in
major cities of the PRC, including Hong Kong. The Group believes that it
has secured such a source of tenants and the market outlook remains
optimistic. With sound property management, the Group will continue to
seek new investment opportunities in service-oriented properties in the PRC

to secure long-term return.

HONG KONG CRUISE CITY: Concept Development project
in Hong Kong

In October 2006, the Hong Kong government announced its decision to
develop a Cruise Terminal in Kai Tak. Subsequent to the submission of an
Expression of Interest to the government in December 2005, the Group
formed a task force to conduct a technical and commercial viability study
with regard to the cruise terminal development. The Group and its cruise
partners are dedicated to promoting the concepts of “Cruise Economy” and
“Cruise City”, and believe that the development of a cruise terminal along
with enhancement facilities will bring substantial benefits and give a boost

to the economy of Hong Kong.
The Group is actively studying the tender for the new cruise terminal

development in old Kai Tak area and is renewing the prospects for entering

into a bid along with the Group’s consortium members.
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FINANCIAL SERVICES
VXL INTERNATIONAL LEASING CO. LTD.

VXL International Leasing Company Limited (8 £ F5AH 5 A BR 2 )
(“VXLIL") was incorporated in Beijing by the Group on 24 February 2006
initially as an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. It is principally engaged in
the operational and financial leasing of various types of machinery and

equipment in the PRC.

To facilitate the smooth operation of VXLIL, the Group disposed of its 55%
interest to VXLCPL, the major shareholder of the Company. The disposal
was completed on 15 November 2006 and aimed at simplifying the operation
of VXLIL and utilizing resources to be deployed on business development,

helping enhance the growth of VXLIL in the long run.

Since February 2007, VXLIL has been active in the leasing market and
brought in revenue for the Group. By taking advantage of the recent
relaxation of the rules on the involvement of foreign companies in the leasing
sector in the PRC, the leasing business is expected to become a stable source

of income for the Group’s financial leasing arm.

VXL FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, VXLFES recorded a revenue of
HK$22.0 million, a substantial increase of 346% over the HK$4.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2005. This was mainly due to a one-off corporate

advisory consultation fee the Group received from a listed group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
R

On 18 May 2007, the Group has entered into a conditional agreement to
dispose of its 100% equity interest in VXLFS. The disposal will provide
additional funds for the Group’s property projects and also enable the Group
to focus its resources on property investment. Following the completion of
the disposal expectedly by end of July 2007, the Group would discontinue
its financial services operation while the operation of property investment

and securities investment will continue.

RESOURCES INVESTMENT

In order to focus the Group’s resources on property-related investments,
the Group is prepared to scale down its efforts in seeking investment

opportunities in natural resources.

FUTURE PLAN

The Group’s business portfolio has been generating recurring income during
the fifteen months under review, and the Group’s consistent growth is to be
sustained by the continued acquisition of high-quality properties in the
Greater China regions. Having laid the foundation of recurring income
streams, the Group will proactively move on to Concept Development

projects.

In the coming year, strong emphasis will be placed on the preparation of
the tender for the Cruise Terminal Development in Kai Tak scheduled for
submission in the first quarter of 2008. By taking part in the cruise terminal

project, the Group aims to bring a robust “Cruise Economy” to Hong Kong.

The Group’s proposed Cruise City features a world-class cruise terminal, a
maritime academic museum, a training school and a theme park with iconic
landmarks. The cruise terminal project aims to attract world-class cruises as
well as affluent cruise passengers from all over the world, turning Hong
Kong into an “Asian Regional Cruise Hub,” and the gateway to the rest of

the PRC.
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BUDGET HOTELS

On 8 June 2007, the Group has entered into an agreement for the acquisition
of 11 hotel properties from China Post Group, a State-owned enterprise in
the PRC by an open tender process conducted through Shanghai United
Assets and Equity Exchange.

The properties comprise 11 hotel assets spread out in the southwest,
northwest and northeast regions of the PRC located in Gansu, Jilin,
Shandong, Sichuan, Xinjiang, Hubei and Shaanxi Provinces respectively.
All hotels are well located within the city centre and in the vicinity of train
stations. The Group intends to revamp the hotel properties and upgrade its
available facilities, with a view to establishing a brand name of “U” Inns

Hotel which aims to provide quality and value added service budget hotel.

The PRC’s tourism industry has been growing rapidly and recorded an annual
increase of more than 11% in income in the past 5 years. In 2005, total
income of tourism industry in the PRC was RMB768.6 billion which was an
increase of 12% from 2004 and is gradually extended to the second and
third tier cities. The Board believes that the acquisition represents an
incomparable opportunity for the Group to acquire a scalable network of
hotel properties and extend its reach to and build up its property portfolio in
various cities and provinces in the PRC and bring in long-term capital

appreciation and the Group targets to acquire more hotels in 2007 and 2008.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our utmost gratitude to our
valued clients, shareholders, business associates for their continued support
for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to our management and employees for their positive efforts

over the past year.

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2007
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s Events
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2006 1st Quarter
SEE I

2006 2nd Quarter

SRR T

2006 3rd Quarter
TERENEE S

2006 4th Quarter
e i

VXL International Leasing Company Limited was incorporated in Beijing and granted with a

leasing business license.
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The Company announced annual financial results for twelve months ended 31 December 2005.

RNFVAGEE —FFRE T A =+ —H kT 07 R B AT -

Annual General Meeting was held on 7 June 2006.
JECARAAE R —FFNAE N A B H BT

The Company announced the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Rich Field
International Limited, which principal assets were Changshou Properties. The transaction was
approved by Shareholders at EGM held on 12 September 2006.
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Completion of the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Rich Field International Limited.
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The Company announced first interim financial results for six months ended 30 June 2006.
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The Company announced the disposal of 55% equity interests in its formerly wholly-owned
subsidiary, VXL International Leasing Company Limited, which was principally engaged in
provision of leasing business in the PRC. The transaction was approved by Shareholders at EGM
held on 14 November 2006.
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The Company announced a top-up placing and subscription of 4,400,000 new shares, which was
completed in November 2006. Net proceeds of approximately HK$34.7 million were raised.
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2007 1st Quarter
S

2007 2nd Quarter
R

Year’s Events (c
GOl

Delivery of possession of Changshou Properties in January 2007.

AT AR EW RS A -

Mr. Stephen Yuen resigned as an Executive Director of the Company on 27 February 2007.
BIEWE R R LA~ b HRHEAA R BT -

The Company announced a change of financial year-end from 31 December to 31 March.
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The Company announced second interim financial results for twelve months ended 31 December
2006.
AT NATERE ZFFNE T A = Bk A B e -

Mr. David Yu Hon To was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 May 2007.
ST BB — BT B w6 AT A -

The Company announced the disposal of the entire equity interests in VXL Financial Services
Limited in order to focus the Group’s resources on the core business of property investment.
AN AV A B A SR A R R 2 RIS o AR B I R A S B
LG T

The Company announced the acquisition of 11 hotel properties from China Post Group in PRC
for an aggregate consideration of HK$181 million for a further diversification of property portfolio
of the Group.
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MEEZTL -

The Company proposed a conditional Share Subdivision on the basis of one existing Share be
subdivided into twenty Subdivided Shares and the change in board lot size for trading from 1,000
existing Shares to 10,000 Subdivided Shares as well as a Bonus Warrants Issue on the basis of one
Warrant for every five Subdivided Shares held by shareholder on 6 August 2007. Details of the
proposals were announced on 21 June 2007.
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Directors’ Commentaries
el e

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, the Group achieved a turnover
of HK$33.9 million, mainly comprised of corporate advisory fees and rental

income from an investment property.

The turnover increased by 350% compared to the year ended 31 December
2005. There is a remarkable increase in corporate advisory fees as a result of
the business growth of VXLES in the current financial year and a one-off
corporate advisory consultation fee received from a listed group. In addition,
the rental income generated from an investment property also rose as a
result of growth in rental and occupancy rates. The Group began to benefit
from a foundation laid in previous years, including selecting a valuable

property and establishing a high-caliber management team.

During the fifteen months period, the Group recorded a fair value gain on
listed investments of HK$2.0 million (year ended 31 December 2005: loss of
HK$0.1 million), mainly resulting from the revaluation of trading securities
as at 31 March 2007.

Other income and gain

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, the Group recorded a total
gain from capital appreciation of Changshou Properties, net of deferred tax,
of HK$100.3 million. In addition, the Group also generated an interest

income of HK$2.9 million during the period under review.

Operating expenses

The operating costs for the fifteen months increased by 104% to HK$68.8
million compared to HK$33.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2005.
The expenses mainly comprise staff costs, office rental payments, and
depreciation of office premises, as well as legal and professional costs and
consultancy fees incurred in pursuing potential projects by the Group. The
increase in the operating costs is mainly attributed to the longer financial
period as a result of the change of the financial year end, as well as the

increased level of operations of VXLES and the investment property.

Taxation

The tax credit of HK$11.2 million mainly represents a reduction in deferred

tax liabilities as a result of reduction of the PRC corporate income tax rate.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a bank and cash balance of HK$21.0 million as of
31 March 2007. Cash reserves have been placed with major banks in Hong
Kong and the PRC in the form of Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi deposits.

Risk in exchange rate fluctuation would not be material.

As of 31 March 2007, the Group had bank loans (secured over certain of its
investment properties valued at HK$143.0 million) totaling HK$100.0 million,
of which HK$3.0 million was due within one year, and HK$97.0 million
was due after one year and within 5 years. The Group also had a loan of
HK$129.0 million due to holding company drawn down during the current
financial year, which is interest-bearing and payable within one year. This
loan from the holding company was mainly used for acquisition of the
Changshou Properties. The Group has planned to finance its projects by
internal resources and bank borrowings. In addition, the Group had total
obligations under finance leases of HK$0.4 million, which will mature within

three years.

As of 31 March 2007, the Group had a gearing ratio of 70%), which is
measured on the basis of the Group’s total interest-bearing debt net of cash
reserves over the shareholders” funds. As the Group carried surplus cash
reserves after netting its borrowings on 31 December 2005, no gearing ratio

existed at that time.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had a total of 56 employees, including
executive directors. The Group’s remuneration policy and packages for the
executive directors and senior management are reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors on an annual basis while that for other employees’
are reviewed and approved by the Chief Executive Officer. The Group
remunerates its employees based on industry practice and the performance
of each individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical
insurance, and a provident fund, and provides a share option scheme for its

employees and executive directors.
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Profiles of Directors

o5 iR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Chairman and member of the EC?

Aged 52. Datuk Lim has been appointed as the Chairman and executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Datuk Lim holds a Bachelor of Economics degree
of The London School of Economics, England. Datuk Lim has substantial
investment and management experience in a wide range of industries
including plantations, leisure and entertainment, construction, property
development and information technology. Prior to joining the Group, Datuk
Lim was the Deputy Managing Director of Genting Berhad and the Joint
Managing Director of Asiatic Development Berhad during 1985 to 1990,
and an alternate non-executive director of Asia Financial Holdings Limited
during 1997 to 2002. Datuk Lim was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of Dataprep Holdings Berhad in 2002 and resigned from the post in February
2004 when he continued to serve that company as an executive director.
Genting Berhad and Asiatic Development Berhad are listed on the Main
Board of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, Dataprep Holdings Berhad
on the Second Board of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and Asia
Financial Holdings Limited on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Datuk Lim is also a director and beneficial shareholder
of VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited which is a Substantial
Shareholder of the Company under the SFO.
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Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, Group President and Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the EC? and member of the RQNC®

Aged 44. Mr. A. Chao has been appointed as an executive Director, the
Group President and the Chief Executive Officer since 1 March 2005. Mr. A.
Chao has extensive experience in the property field both in Hong Kong and
Asia. He was engaged in property investment and development in Hong
Kong during the last 18 years. Mr. A. Chao started his property business in
1988 and developed his company into an integrated real estate group in
Hong Kong and Asia with businesses encompassing such diverse areas as
property agency, property investment/development, estate management and
cleaning service, interior design and contracting business. He also has years
of experience in the corporate development, business planning, advertising,
direct marketing and publishing industries. Mr. A. Chao is also a director
and beneficial shareholder of Huge More Limited which is a Substantial

Shareholder of the Company under the SFO.

Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi, Financial Controller and member of the ECY

Aged 47. Ms. So has been appointed as an executive Director since
18 February 2005. She has also been the Financial Controller since June
2004. Ms. So holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree of The University of
New South Wales, Australia. She is a Chartered Accountant of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of HKICPA.
She gained her professional qualification in one of the largest international
accounting firms. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. So worked in the banking
sector and was the Head of Operations and Finance in one of the leading
Australian banks in Hong Kong. She has nearly twenty years of investment
and institutional banking experience covering management, operations,

accounting and compliance related assignments.
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s of Directors (Continued)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing, Chairman of the AC® and member of the
RQNC®

Aged 69. Mr. Yee has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 22 November 2004. Mr. Yee holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree of The University of Melbourne, Australia. He is a member of The
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia and The Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.
Mr. Yee was formerly with Ernst & Whinney (now known as Ernst & Young),
an international firm of accountants in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia before
retiring as a Senior Partner in 1990 after 26 years in professional practice,
handling all facets of professional services as a practicing accountant. He
has successfully implemented several schemes of reconstruction,
restructuring and re-listing of public listed companies on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. Mr. Yee is also an independent non-executive director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Dataprep Holdings Berhad, Mega
First Corporation Berhad, Pacific & Orient Berhad and Pacific & Orient
Insurance Berhad (“POI”), all of which are public companies listed on Bursa

Malaysia Securities Berhad except for POI.
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Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Member of the AC? and the RQNC®

Aged 63. Mr. Smith has been appointed an independent non-executive
Director since 27 April 2004. Mr. Smith holds an LL.B. (Hons) degree of
Bristol University, England. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in
1967 and in Hong Kong in 1970. He was elected a council member of the
Stock Exchange on two occasions. He was a member of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government’s Economic Advisory
Committee, and was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform for ten years. Mr. Smith was the Vice
Chairman, Pacific Region of Credit Suisse First Boston, a leading global
investment bank from 1997 until his retirement in December 2001. He was
also the Chief Executive of Jardine Fleming Group from 1983 to 1994 and
the Chairman of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Smith
has over 28 years of investment banking experience in Asia. Mr. Smith is an
independent non-executive director of a number of listed companies
including Star Cruises Limited, Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited, Frasers
Property (China) Limited and Lei Shing Hong Limited which are listed on
the Stock Exchange; Asia Credit Hedge Fund, Bear Stearns Global Alpha
Fund Limited, CQS Asia Feeder Fund Limited, CQS Asia Master Fund
Limited, CQS Convertible and Quantitative Strategies Feeder Fund Limited
and LIM Asia Arbitrage Fund Limited which are listed on The Irish Stock
Exchange; KGR Absolute Return PCC Limited which is listed on The London
Stock Exchange; China Sunergy Co., Limited which is listed on NASDAQ
and Noble Group Limited and United International Securities Limited which

are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

R R )

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P., Chairman of the RQNC® and member of the
AC(Z)

Aged 67. Dr. Lee has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 6 October 2005. Dr. Lee holds an honorary degree of Doctor
of Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an honorary
degree of Doctor of Laws of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee
was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council from 1978 to
1997 and a senior member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council from 1988
to 1991. Dr. Lee was also a member of the Hong Kong Executive Council
from 1985 to 1992. He is currently a deputy of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the 9th and 10th National People’s Congress, the
PRC and the Chairman of Pacific Dimensions Consultants Limited and Jada
Electronics Limited. He has also taken an active role in public services. Dr.
Lee is an independent non-executive director of Giordano International
Limited, ITE (Holdings) Limited, Playmates Holdings Limited, Sam Woo
Holdings Limited, Wang On Group Limited and AMS Public Transport
Holdings Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of
Interchina Holdings Company Limited until 1 March 2006, all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. David YU Hon To, Member of the AC? and the RQNC®

Aged 59. Mr. YU has been appointed an independent non-executive Director
since 1 May 2007. Mr. YU is a founder and director of Management Capital
Limited, which specializes in direct investment and corporate financial
advisory activities. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a partner of an international
accounting firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is
currently an independent non-executive director of several listed companies

in Hong Kong.

Notes:

(1)  EC- Executive Committee of the Board

(2) AC - Audit Committee of the Board

(3) RQONC - Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee of the Board
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

IR @

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

While focusing on its business development with full force, VXL places great
effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we believe good
corporate governance is an important component in striving for the highest

returns to our Shareholders.

Our principles of corporate governance emphasize a quality Board, sound
internal control, independence, transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders. Both the Board and the management are committed to
continuously improving corporate governance practices and an ethical

corporate culture as its intrinsic value.

The Group has principally complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, with minor

deviations as stated below.

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation instead of
retirement in every three years at the annual general meeting. In order to
comply with the Code A.4.2 of the CG Code, the Board will ensure that

each director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to Code A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the non-executive
Directors, except Mr. Michael YEE Kam Shing and Mr. Alan Howard SMITH,
are appointed for specific term. However, as one-third of all the Directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting pursuant to Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Board considers that sufficient measures have been made to ensure that
the Company ‘s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than

those stipulated in the CG Code.
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ENHANCED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STANDARDS

In the period under review, we have further developed the Internal Control

Manual with new and revised guidelines and policies adopted. The Company

currently has the following policies, guidelines, procedures and codes in

place:

@)

(i)

Financial Control

Guideline on Payment Procedures
(adopted on 9 September 2005 and revised on 1 March 2006
and 19 May 2006)

Guideline on Receipt Procedures

(adopted on 9 September 2005)

Guideline on Capital Expenditures

(adopted on 1 March 2006)

Guideline on Month End Closing and Monthly Management
Reporting

(adopted on 1 March 2006)

Policy on Award of Non-Audit Services to External Auditors
(adopted on 13 April 2006)

Operational Control

Guideline on Communications
(adopted on 2 September 2005)
Guideline on Supply of Information to the Board

(adopted on 3 October 2005)
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mpliance Control
Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer
(adopted on 27 September 2005)
- Guideline on Division of Roles of the Board and the Management
(adopted on 27 September 2005)
- Model Code of Securities Dealings by Directors and Relevant
Employees of the Company
(adopted on 27 September 2005)
- Code of Conduct
(adopted on 1 November 2005)
- Policy on Communication with Shareholders
(adopted on 13 April 2006)
- Procedures on Directors” Nomination, Appointment and Re-
Appointment
(adopted on 13 April 2006)
—  Guideline on Independent Professional Advice
(adopted on 13 April 2006)
—  Procedures on Developing Remuneration Policy
(adopted on 13 April 2006)
—  Remuneration Policy

(adopted on 13 April 2006)
(iv) Risk Control

- Risk Management Framework and Policy
(adopted on 25 September 2006)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
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The Group’s internal audit function was outsourced to a professional accounting firm during the period under review.
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THE BOARD

VXL is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors with reporting structure as
set out in the above framework, including three executive Directors, namely,
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (the Chairman), Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
(the Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing,
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. and Mr. David
YU Hon To.

The Board is committed to maintain a balanced composition in terms of its

diversity, independence and relationship.

Board Practices

The Board holds meeting regularly at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as the overall
strategy of the Company. All Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days is given for
aregular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for all other Board
meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and available for
inspection by Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted access to relevant
information in a timely manner with appropriate information in such form
and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities. During the period under review,
the Board agreed procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense,
to assist them to discharge their duties, as provided in the “Guideline on

Independent Professional Advice”.
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The Board held seven meetings during the fifteen months ended 31 March

2007 and its attendance record is set out below:—

Corporate

EFENRE - FFLESASTH
(LA SR BRAT Tl - Hk R
T

Eligibility to No.of  Attendance
Attend  Attendance Rate
Directors wH R HH RS TR 3 H R R HRE (%)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah ME R 7 6 86%
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO e S AR 7 7 100%
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi fREER L 7 7 100%
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing REBEE 7 6 86%
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. SRR AT L 7 6 86%
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. 2R R A 7 5 71%
Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching Bor® AP SEED 6 6 100%
Mr. David YU Hon To® AT SRR N/AREN  NARBEA  N/AREHA
Note: BfFE -

(1) Resigned on 27 February 2007.
(2)  Appointed on 1 May 2007.

Independence

VXL believes that independence brings unbiased judgment and conscience
in decision making. The Board currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, representing over half of the full Board members. Two
of independent non-executive Directors possess accounting expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from
each independent non-executive Director a written confirmation of their
independence and has satisfied their independence as required by the Listing

Rules.
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Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term except
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing and Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., who do not
have a fixed term of appointment, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM. According to the Articles of Association, one-
third of the Directors who served longest on the Board, shall retire but shall
be eligible for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to Code A.4.2 of the CG
Code, every Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years.
The Board will ensure each Director shall retire by rotation at least once
every three years in order to comply with the Code Provisions of the Listing

Rules.

According to the Articles of Association, a Director appointed to fill a causal
vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election by

Shareholders at the first AGM after their appointment.

Relationship

There is no family relationship among the Directors, senior management or

substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In order to ensure a balance of power and authority, the responsibilities of
the Chairman, Datuk LIM Chee Wah and the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHADO, are segregated and have clearly defined
in the “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer”.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the

Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.
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Board Committees

Apart from the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee and the
Remuneration, Quality and Nomination (“RQN”) Committee, the Board
established the Risk Management Committee with defined terms of reference
during the period under review. Reports of committee meetings are presented

to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors. The Executive
Committee is chaired by Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO, the Chief
Executive Officer, and the two other members are Datuk LIM Chee Wah
and Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi. Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching Bor was also a member
of the Executive Committee during the period under review until his

resignation as a Director on 27 February 2007.

The Executive Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its

prinicpal duties are:

(1) implementation of policies and decisions of the Board;

(2) adopting and implementing internal operational policies and guidelines

for management and employees;

(3) reviewing the interim results and final financial statements prior to

review by the Audit Committee;

(4) formulating and supervising the implementation of policies on the day-

to-day business operations of the Group;

(5) reviewing the operating and capital budgets of the Group and to submit

their recommendations to the Board for approval; and

(6) reviewing proposals involving acquisition or disposal of assets.
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ion to physically held meetings, the Executive Committee also made
by way of circulation of written resolutions. The main works
ed by the Executive Committee during the period under review and

up to the date of this Annual Report include the following:—

(1) Reviewed and approved business investments within their authorities;

(2) Reviewed and approved normal operational issues;

(3) Reviewed interim and final financial results;

(4) Reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices in accordance

with the CG Code; and

(5) Adopted corporate guidelines for internal control purpose.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors
who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial experience
and skills to undertake review of financial statements in accordance with
good practice of financial reporting. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr.
Michael YEE Kim Shing and the other three members are Mr. Alan Howard
SMITH, J.P., Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. and Mr. David YU Hon To
(appointed on 1 May 2007).

28 | VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

FREETT &kl » MATZR B G N AR RS ik
ik AR PR o A A P A AR IR H O
IE TR B GRITH EE LEERE &
I - —

£

(1) AR FCHHE SR B S AL B B

(2)  HFBH Bt H R A

() 7B B AR AR S A

@) MREESEERT D FRA L A AEE
HER s K

(G)  PREAA B AR R AR T -

HFRLRE

FHZB ORI AR RTES  aE
HIPRMG BRI ~ A TR LB AR
ST HE > DAARSR B RE A R LA B A Bk -
FEHEZBGHRSETEIMETR  HER=4
B Ry SRR A RSP~ 2R T A L
LA ed (R L LERLHA — HlEZ
) -



The Audit Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal

duties are as follows:—

@

@

©)

©

®)

6)

@

®)

to recommend to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the External Auditors, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the External Auditors, and any questions

of resignation or dismissal of that Auditors;

to review and monitor the External Auditors” independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of External

Auditors for provision of non-audit services;

to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the annual
report, interim reports and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board;

to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems;

to review issues brought by the External Auditors to management’s
attention concerning accounting records, financial accounts or systems
of control and ensure the management has provided timely response

for implementation and rectification;

to review the existence and propriety of any related party transactions

and conflict of interest situations; and

to review the Corporate Governance Report and to approve the Audit

Committee’s annual report on its activities.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the period under review

and the attendance record is set out below:—

BRI - R B e AT T e K
BRI+ —

Eligibility No.of  Attendance

to Attend  Attendance Rate
Directors EH TR HH S O3 H S R HE R (%)
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing RERBIEAE 3 3 100%
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. S EE A T b 3 2 67%
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. B i A KT b 3 3 100%
Mr. David YU Hon To® AR SEAED N/AAS 5 N/AAS 8 N/AAS 4 ]
Note: Milat

(1)  Appointed on 1 May 2007.

In addition to physically held meetings, the Audit Committee also made

decision by way of circulation of written resolutions. The main works

performed by the Audit Committee during the period under review and up

to the date of this Annual Report include the following:—

(1) reviewed with the External Auditors their audit plans (inclusive of

system evaluation, audit fees, issues raised and management response)

prior to the commencement of the annual audit;

(2) reviewed with the External Auditors the draft interim and annual

financial statements and results announcements, the audit reports,

issues and reservations arising from audits and the management letters;

(3) reviewed and recommended to the Board as to the reappointment and

remuneration of the External Auditors;

(4) reviewed and approved internal audit reports;
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®)

6)

@)

®)

©)

reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems,
through review of the work undertaken by the Internal and External

Auditors;

reviewed the disclosure of related party transactions entered into by
the Company and the Group and any conflict of interest situation which

may have an impact on management’s integrity;

updated and advised the Board on latest changes and pronouncements

that were issued by the professional, statutory and regulatory bodies;

reported to and updated the Board on significant issues and concerns
discussed during the Audit Committee’s meetings and, where

appropriate, made relevant recommendations to the Board;

prepared the Audit Committee’s annual report for inclusion in the

Annual Report.

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination (“RQN") Committee

The RON Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors

and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Committee is chaired

by Dr. Allen Lee Peng Fei, ].P. and the other four members are Mr. Michael
YEE Kim Shing, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-
CHAO (appointed on 13 April 2006) and Mr. David YU Hon To (appointed
on 1 May 2007).
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N Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal

re as follows:—

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and

transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

to approve remuneration of all executive Directors and make

recommendations to the fees of non-executive Directors to the Board;

to review and recommend on the structure, size and composition of

the Board;

to identify suitably qualified candidates for nomination for directorships;

to establish a mechanism for formal assessment and to perform periodic

assessment on the effectiveness of the Board;

to develop and arrange in-house orientation programme for newly

appointed Directors;

to identify and recommend programmes for continuous training and
enhancement of knowledge particularly pertaining to regulatory

developments; and

to set key performance indicators in assessing performance of key

personnel.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

RQNZE B 77 5 e A 1 - o e
mE -

@

@

®)

)

®)

(6)

@

©)

AR 2 R A N R B A LA il wT L5
B ECR B IR BB R RET > o
EH g Rt

THLEA AT 2 S 8N - 0 BT
AT 1 g PR

Wt e SN - NBORALAL > AR

feit 4

PO E R A B R N

HESLIERERFAG IR AT 2 MIREAL LAY
il 2 S A2 RE

Ty AT S S R B 2 R o o )

il I R R e PR A ) R R T R
B JUHA B B R R AR M

HESLAAG BN B AR B FEBOR B



The RON Committee held one meeting during the period under review and

Corporate

BB - RONZE B & 847 T —IK

its attendance record is set out below:— W B SR - —

Eligibility No.of  Attendance

to Attend  Attendance Rate
Directors R R HE R UK B H s Uk B H 2R (%)
Dr. Allen Lee Peng Fei, J.P. ZE MR A 1 1 100%
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing R 1 1 100%
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. Ll p N 1 0 0%
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO® SR O N/AREN  NARBEA  N/ARBEHA
Mr. David YU Hon To® AT RO N/AAE N/AA N/AAE A
Notes: BtE -

(1)  Appointed on 13 April 2006
(2)  Appointed on 1 May 2007

The main works performed by the RQN Committee during the period under

review and up to the date of this Annual Report include the following:—

(1) recommended formal and transparent procedures for development of

the Group’s Remuneration Policy;

(2) recommended and approved the remuneration of executive Directors

and recommended the fees of non-executive Directors;

(3) reviewed and recommended the structure, size and composition of

the Board;

(4) reviewed and recommended the procedures on Directors’ nomination

and the appointment and re-appointment of Directors;

(5) recommended the fixing of a specific term of appointment and the

adoption of a specimen appointment letter for non-executive Directors;
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(6) reviewed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(7) assessed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Board as a whole;

(8) reviewed the suitability of induction and continuous training

programmes;
(9) reviewed succession planning arrangement;

(10) reviewed and recommended to the Board the appointment of the Chief

Executive Officer as a member of the RQN Committee; and

(11) prepared the RQON Committee’s annual report for inclusion in the

Annual Report.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES
Under Statute, Rules and Regulations

All Directors of VXL Capital, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to the Shareholders for the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company and shall perform their responsibilities in
accordance with the CG Code. They have a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and are fully aware of their
responsibilities under statute and common laws, the Listing Rules, applicable
legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business and

governance policies of the Company.
The following statements, which set out the responsibilities of the Directors

in relation to the financial statements, should be read in conjunction with

the Independent Auditors” Report contained in this Annual Report.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

(6) FRBSLIFPATESFRBSLIE
(7)  *PAh BT S BB

(8)  MrwPwALZE A A A AR

) MEHEEE

(10) MZAEATEREEUERQNZ B &l B i
Tkt s H g fe ek &

(1) #ERQNZE B GAEEHE - DIRALE
it o

EHHME
AL ~ BRI BRI T B B AT:

L < 2 ) AR ) e R B AR AR
NTIHRSE ~ SEHFIRB) K 3% 5 T ZE 1) UK
VERAE - MERYE GRS R A AT R
1 o PR AR 2 R IR 1 B SR 3 A R P B
fif > oM AAR AR Rk~ (b
RLADY ~ 8 ik R RO B AR E 5 K
AN R S5 S EIRBUR T IIGR

T SCH S BB R IO BT > BB AR AR
HH B OB S A BT ) — B



Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial

statements which give a true and fair view.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Group
uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied, and that

all applicable accounting standards are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the

applicable accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has no material uncertainties and that, for this reason,
it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions of the Directors and

the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in the

Listing Rules were as follows:—

Interests of the Directors in Shares and underlying

Shares of the Company

Long Position

O RATBOR R R I A

REEFEEFEE=HA=+—H > REGEHR N
AR 55 = L T ARBLE R AL R AR
B RO T > A Rl 25 H 3 AT AR A
28 A AR L (e G o B B AR XV
TR BT R T 600 ) B I~ AR B R0 B A
it BOHRGE Ch TR pri b i 88T A S
16758 Ty W RRHE ST ]I (CREMEST D) ZHAM g A
) BB T R AR B RO IR - —

B A A L T B Ay B A BRI A7 e
i

Approximate
Percentage
of Total

Issued Shares

in Shares Nature of Interests 4 DEAT A

Name of Director HFH WA OBer) L HIMERI T 43 Lo

(%)

Datuk LIM Chee Wah PRECFE SR ([MREE) 53,465,400  Corporate Interest 69.98
(“Datuk Lim”) NI

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO 56 AE (TBE S84 ) 15,000,0002  Corporate Interest 19.63
(“Mr. A. Chao”) ANIL

Note:

1.

The corporate interests are held by VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited
(“VXLCPL”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk Lim. The
interests in 53,465,400 Shares comprises 38,465,400 Shares which are beneficially
owned by VXLCPL and 15,000,000 Shares which are deemed to be interested
by VXLCPL as security interests. The 15,000,000 Shares are duplicated with
that of Mr. A. Chao’s Shares as set out in note 2 of this section and note 2 of the
section “Substantial Shareholders” Interests in Securities”.

The corporate interests are held by Huge More Limited, a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. A. Chao. The 15,000,000 Shares are duplicated with
the security interest deemed to be interested by VXLCPL as set out in note 1 of
this section and note 2 of the section “Substantial Shareholders” Interests in
Securities”.
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Interests of the Directors in shares and underlying

shares of other associated corporations of the Company

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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S A O ) R AR U 2 R e A B
B JBe A7 F i 2

Percentage

Name of of Total

Associated Number of Issued Shares

Corporation Nature of Interests Shares held i &# AT

Name of Director  EHk% R M 3 P 2 RERR M FrA R E RBE S

(%)

Datuk Lim MER Million Sky Corporate Interest 55 ordinary 55.00
Investments Limited A TSR shares®
EREEA R 558 -4 i

Note:

3. The corporate interests are held by VXLCPL, a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Datuk Lim.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
maintained under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

REMUNERATION POLICY

VXL Capital considers a properly structured and fair remuneration policy
can support the alignment of the interests of Directors, senior management
and staff for the interests of the Group. In April 2006, the Company adopted
the “Procedures on Developing Remuneration Policy” and “Remuneration
Policy” for setting out the remuneration policy for Directors, senior

management and staff.
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Under the Company’s Remuneration Policy, a Director is not allowed to
approve his own remuneration which package principally includes basic
salary and benefits, performance-based discretionary bonus and share

option.

Remuneration of executive Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the RON Committee. Directors’ fees are also subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the AGM. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties

including attendance at Company meetings.

Remuneration of senior management and staff is also subject to the
Company’s Remuneration Policy. The level and structure of remuneration
are reviewed annually taking into consideration of competitiveness and

practices of human resources market and performance of individual staff.

DIRECTOR’S NOMINATION AND
APPOINTMENT

In April 2006, the Company adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is empowered to appoint
a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders
(being two or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
entire issued share capital of the Company) are empowered to nominate
candidates for directorship and subject to Shareholders” approval at general
meeting. The RON Committee can also nominate candidates for directorship
for appointment by the Board. Any director appointed by the Board during
the year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the

Company and be eligible for re-election.
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The Company has been providing comprehensive induction to newly
appointed Directors to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities under statute and common laws, the Listing Rules, applicable
legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business and

governance policies of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s External Auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers. The External
Auditors provide an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the External Auditors to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee is
obliged to ensure continuing External Auditors” objectivity and safeguard
independence. In April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Policy on
Award of Non-Audit Services to External Auditors” for setting out the criteria

for award of non-audit services.

Details of the audit and non-audit fees on services rendered to the Group
during the period under review are set out in the financial statements of this

Annual Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to Code C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has engaged an
external accounting firm as Internal Auditors to provide internal audit services
to the Company and its subsidiaries for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2007.
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The Internal Auditors have conducted evaluation and tests in connection

with the following management’s assertions:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group including financial reporting,

operational and compliance controls is effective;
(2)  the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.

The Internal Auditors have completed their risk-based review and concluded
that no matter of a significant concern has arisen and nothing has come to
their attention which causes them to believe that the above statements are

not true.

Based on the work performed by Internal Auditors, the Board has reviewed
the results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the Group’s
system of internal controls is sound and adequate. The Board will continue
to review and improve the Group’s internal control system, taking into
account the prevailing regulatory requirement, the Group’s business

development and interests of shareholders.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

The Company engaged a full-time qualified accountant as specified under
the Listing Rules in overseeing the Group in connection with its (i) financial
reporting procedures and (ii) internal controls and (iii) compliance with the
requirements under Listing Rules with respect to financial reporting and

other accounting related issues.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accessible by all Directors for advice and services
with a view of ensuring that Board procedures are followed. She assists the
Chairman of the Board and its committees in preparing agenda for meetings
and in preparing and disseminating Board papers to the Directors and Board
Committee members in a timely and comprehensive manner. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the overall corporate governance
and compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules,
Companies Ordinance and the SFO, including timely dissemination of
announcements and information relating to the Group to the market and
ensuring that proper notification of Directors’ dealings in securities of the

Group is made.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

In VXL Capital, the Board has overall responsibility for internal control and
reviewing its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal
and that the interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it
for decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

The Audit Committee highlighted the benefits of establishing a formal risk
management function and framework to the Board and the management
looked into “The Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic

Framework” issued by the HKICPA during the period under review.
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In April 2006, the outsourced Internal Auditors recommended to the Audit
Committee and the Audit Committee accepted and proposed to the Board
the establishment of a formal “Risk Management Framework and Polices”
and the formation of the Risk Management Committee. In January 2007,
the Board resolved to establish the Risk Management Committee and laid

the ground of risk management for the Company.

In addition, the Company undertook the following measures to maintain

internal control environment during the period under review:—

Internal Control Manual

A written outline of an “Internal Control Manual” specifying financial,
operational, compliance and risk controls was adopted and implemented

by the Company throughout the period under review.

Price-Sensitive Information

VXL Capital is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules in disclosing
price-sensitive information. The Directors take extreme precautionary
measures in handling price-sensitive information. The “Guideline on
Communications”, setting out detailed procedures and measures in handing
dissemination of price-sensitive information has been adopted. Designated

spokesmen are assigned to respond to enquiries in allocated areas of issues.

Code of Conduct

The Group believes its business success is built on high standards of business
ethical practices. The “Code of Conduct” has been adopted and is applicable
to management and staff, as well as Directors so as to place all employees of
the Company under specific obligations on ethics and principles when

conducting the business of the Company.
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Internal Model Code

The Board has adopted a “Model Code of Securities Dealings by Directors
and Relevant Employees of the Company” (the “Model Code”)” as the
Group’s guidelines regarding Directors” and relevant employees’ securities
transaction on terms no less exacting than the required standard as set out
in the Model Code of the Listing Rules. Specific confirmations were obtained
from all Directors confirming that they have complied with the Model Code
in their securities transactions throughout the period under review.
Management staff in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
is also requested to monitor and comply with the Model Code. No incident
of non-compliance was noted by the Company during the period under

review.

Insurance Cover

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors and officers shall be entitled
to be indemnified by the Company against any liabilities incurred by them
in the execution and discharge of duties. The Company has arranged for
appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors and officers for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is

reviewed on an annual basis.

SHAREHOLDERS” COMMUNICATION

The Board endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders
and the “Policy of Steps in Communications with Shareholders” was adopted

in April 2006 which is set out as follows:—

(1)  Shareholders are kept informed of the latest development of the Group

through publication of timely announcements.
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(2) Shareholders are kept informed of major transactions of the Group

©)

@)

®)

through publication of circulars and substantive resolutions contained
in the notices of general meetings. Sufficient notice is given for general
meetings for consideration by Shareholders of the substantive
resolutions. Procedures for demand of poll are also set out in circular

to Shareholders.

Shareholders are provided with clear and full information on the
performance of the Group through publication of interim and annual

reports.

Shareholders are given the opportunity to meet the Board members
and decide on substantive resolutions of the Company through
attendance of general meetings of the Company. Directors and
members of Committees are present to answer questions on the

Company’s businesses at the general meetings.

The Company maintains a website where comprehensive and updated
information about the Company’s major business and corporate

structure, announcements and press releases are posted.

Convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the Companies Ordinance,

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up share capital

of the Company can convene a general meeting by written request stating

the objectives of the general meeting to the Company.
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Voting by Poll

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, a resolution put to the vote at a
general meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is

demanded (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands):—

(1) by the Chairman; or

(2) by at least three Shareholders present in person (or in case of a
Shareholder being a corporation by its duly authorised representative)

or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(3) by a Shareholder or Shareholders present in person (or in the case of a
Shareholder being a corporation by its duly authorised representative)
or by proxy and holding Shares in the Company conferring a right to
vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been
paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all

Shares conferring that right.

The Chairman of the meeting or the Company Secretary shall at the general
meeting explain to Shareholders the procedures for voting by poll and answer
questions from Shareholders before a poll is conducted. The Company shall
ensure votes cast are properly counted and recorded. Independent scrutineers
are appointed for scruitineering the poll at a general meeting. Poll results

are announced when the general meeting is concluded.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2007, the interests or short positions of every person, other
than the directors and chief executive of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company, as recorded in the register maintained

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:—

Bt Y il ez o

ATERELHEZHA = H o RS R
B 55 =1 =N R AL mA 0 5
RO > BRAS S A3 AT AR USRI A
LR AR T e B R B B3 ) R £ I
T

Approximate
Percentage
of Total

Issued Shares

Long Position 1 B AT A
Name of Shareholder in Shares Nature of interests S A HELY
& A A (B4 HE£5 MR A"k
(%)
VXL Capital Partners Corporation 38,465,400 Beneficial interests 50.35
Limited (“VXLCPL") JEgTy o
15,000,000® Security interests 19.63
MRS
Huge More Limited 15,000,000 Beneficial interests 19.63
B o i
Note: Bt

1. The 38,465,400 Shares are beneficially owned by VXLCPL which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Datuk Lim, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director of the Company.

2. The 15,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Huge More Limited and are
deemed to be interested by VXLCPL as security interests. Huge More Limited
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. A. Chao, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director of the Company. These 15,000,000 Shares duplicated
among themselves in this section and as set out in notes 1 and 2 of the section
“Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, no other interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company were recorded

in the register maintained under section 336 of the SFO.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

1. #%38,465,400 M I VXLCPLE ti A -
VXLCPLHAREE (A 7l & 35 3T
=) EERERES -

2. #415,000,000/8 5 HiHuge More Limited H i
P WA B B VXL CPLAS A 1 b A abhE i 14
& Hr » Huge More Limited f #8554 (AR A Rl T
BAARERTHEE) 2EREGWEA - &
15,000,000 1% 1 143 11 M 2 46 A B Ay S B | 3 [
2 AT R AR AR S AT | — BB R 1 e 2 i ak
SR T B AR o

B ESCrisR B4 > R EREFE A =+
H > R GE S IR GRED 56 =1 =+ kA7
i 5 R AR T o At 7 B 47 A B e A7 Y
fEaE SR A -



Corporate Governance Report (c

AR @@
General Meetings Held TR KT
The Company held four Shareholders” meetings during the period under T IR > AR R A B R BOR R ® «
review. The major issues discussed were summarized below:— BT - —
Date of General Meeting Details of Resolution Decision
JB AR H T £ A
7 June 2006 1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements and the reports Passed
TERERFEANHLEH of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2005. ikl
BEE RN E =TT A+ T H =+ — H IR B kR
B Sl RAZ B
2. Tore-elect Directors. Passed
3. To re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the External Passed
Auditors and to authorize the Board to fix their remuneration. i
HOHT RIS AR SRR 8 S I S S NISAZ B - MR S
H G -
4. (i) To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and Passed
deal with additional shares representing up to 20% of the issued A

share capital of the Company at the date of the 2006 AGM.
ETHEFREE - BT SR BRI R EAR A TR —F TN
AR FRCRRIAF R 85 H BB ATIAR 209 A JBE3 1Y — AR

(i) To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares Passed
representing up to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company k]
at the date of the 2006 AGM.

TP O e 2 A R A F N O AR R g
H 2 BATIAR10% 19 B0 A — A HE

(iii) To extend the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot, Passed
issue and deal with additional shares by the addition of such k]
number of shares to be repurchased by the Company.

BRI PEFALE - 3617 SR BAA FIRUN A 09— Mt i
AL A B B A -

5. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the year ended Passed
31 December 2005. I
MM E TR AE+ A =+ — HILFE R E RS -
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Date of General Meeting Details of Resolution Decision
JBHOR & H T £ R
10 July 2006 To approve the Revised Acquisition in relation to the Changshou Properties Passed
TELNFEEATH and the grant and exercise of the Call and Put Options, to confirm the signing i

and execution, perfection and delivery of the Revised Agreement and to

authorize the execution of the Shareholders” Agreement by the Directors

for and on behalf of the Company. (capitalized terms as defined in the

Company’s circular dated 23 June 2006)

HEHEA B S S A AR RSO SR T RO 1% 7 Je AT i > Bl (A

A1 W) BRI S ST~ SERMURAT > AR S AU AR A w) T Bt

i) o (BRI —FE NN H = HIA A RAEK)
12 September 2006 To approve the Acquisition in relation to the Changeshou Properties and all Passed
TEEANFNAA+TH transactions contemplated under the New Agreement, and to confirm the k]

signing and execution, perfection and delivery of the New

Agreement.(capitalized terms as defined in the Company’s circular dated

25 August 2006)

HEHEAT BRSSO B R ) DT BRAEA TR 22 5 > It CRA ) 19

RIS AT ~ SERURASAT o (REgR B H A — AN A L H A

ANGIRELES))
14 November 2006 To approve the Disposal in relation to VXL International Leasing Company Passed
ZERBANFE—A A Limited, the Purchaser’s Right and the Right of First Refusal, to confirm the piikic]

signing and execution, perfection and delivery of the Agreement and to
authorize the execution of the Agreement by the Directors for and on behalf
of the Company. (capitalized terms as defined in the Company’s circular
dated 27 October 2006)
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge
of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable date prior

to the issue of this annual report.
On behalf of the Board

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 July 2007
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Report of the Directors
R E

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for

the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007.

CHANGE OF YEAR END DATE

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, the Company has changed
its year end date from 31 December to 31 March. The financial statements
presented herein therefore cover the fifteen months from 1 January 2006 to

31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 17

to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by business and geographical segments of the Group’s
performance and assets for the period under review is set out in Note 5 to

the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 are set

out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 62.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, the aggregate turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 55.0% of the Group’s total turnover. The turnover attributable
to the Group’s largest customer was approximately 44.0% of the Group’s

total turnover.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
20.7% of the Group’s total purchase and the purchase attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 6.3% of the Group’s total

purchases.

None of the Directors, their Associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers

or suppliers noted above.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the fifteen

months ended 31 March 2007.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2007 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity and Note 29 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

and the Company are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group held for investment purposes

are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donation of HK$1,000 during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2007 (twelve months ended 31 December 2006: HK$NIl).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2007, calculated under
section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$19,277,000
(31 December 2005: HK$52,576,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial periods/years is set out on page 141.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the fifteen months

ended 31 March 2007.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company on 5 June 2005 adopted the Scheme of which the key terms

are summarized below:
(@) The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options

to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution

or potential contribution to the growth and development of the Group;

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

JBeAR
A R RS AL BB M 28 o

] Bt o3 IRk

RNEEFLFEZA=Z1—H » RA AR
AGRA) 55 - JUB MR E G B W] AR S IR AR
19,277,000% 70 (CHEFAAE T A =+—H :
52,576,000%5 JC) °

URCE R

A I 2 A B O], LR A -
SLA M RN 141 H -

B -
e
A2 A AT T A AR R b =
A=A B R A R -
S 1225 AT ] LT <

H 5 B [ A A = Y _E i

S BB R 3

AT BE I T H R T IR
R ILES

() FIEEAEMAR LT ] ) S 2 B
B IREAEE o 1 B Dl S AR SR B AR
JEE AR 10 ik A 11 DR 174 % Jigh i ]
s



(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

The participants of the Scheme include any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time, and including any executive Director
but excluding any non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Director) of any company within the Group or any Invested

Entity (as defined in the Scheme);

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme is
7,200,000 which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the

Company at the date of adoption of the Scheme;

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme unless
approval from the Company’s Shareholders has been obtained. The
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Group if such grant would result in the 30% limit being

exceeded;

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
to any Eligible Participant (as defined in the Scheme) under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period during which an option
is exercised by the grantee, shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares for the time being in issue. Any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or any of their respective Associates in aggregate more
than 0.1% of Shares in issue, and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price on the date of such grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting;

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

)
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(vi)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period (which may not expire later than 10 years
from the date of grant) to be notified by the Board to each grantee.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole discretion, there
is no requirement on the minimum period for which any option granted
or to be granted must be held or the performance targets which must

be achieved before the option can be exercised;

(vii) A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of consideration for the

grant of an option is required to be paid by each grantee upon

acceptance of the option;

(viii) The subscription price payable upon exercising any particular option

(ix)

granted under the Scheme is determined based on a formula: P = N x
Ep, where “P” is the subscription price; “N” is the number of shares to
be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official closing
prices of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer and as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the Scheme; and

The life of the Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date of the Scheme or the date on which the Scheme is terminated by

resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

As at 31 March 2007, no share option was issued, exercised, cancelled, lapsed

or outstanding.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 and up to the

date of this Annual Report were:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO

Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.

Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching Bor (resigned on 27 February 2007)
Mr. David YU Hon Ton (appointed on 1 May 2007)

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing, Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO and
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi, who have been longest in office since last election
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing
will not offer himself for re-election. Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
and Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.

Subsequent to the period end, Mr. David YU Hon To was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 1 May 2007. In
accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. David YU Hon To retires at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,

offers himself for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 14 to 18.
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DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors” emoluments for the fifteen months ended 31 March

2007 are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2007, none of the Directors nor his/her Associates was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 9 October 2006, VXL Investments Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement whereby the Group
agreed to dispose (“Disposal”) to VXL Partners of 55% of the issued shares
of and shareholder’s loan due from Million Sky Investments Limited
(“Million Sky”) to the Group for an aggregate consideration of
HK$42,070,665.45. The principal asset of Million Sky is an investment in
the entire equity interests in VXL International Leasing Company Limited,
a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC which is
principally engaged in operational leasing and financial leasing of various
types of machinery and equipment in the PRC. Following completion of the
Disposal, the Group continues to hold 45% of the issued shares of Million
Sky. The gain on Disposal was approximately HK$715,000. Details of the
Disposal were announced by the Company on 9 October 2006. The resolution
for approving the Disposal was passed by Shareholders at the extraordinary

general meeting of the Company held on 14 November 2006.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 15 May 2006, VXL Management Services Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement”) with Smart Forward Services Limited (“Smart Forward”), a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk Lim Chee Wah, the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the Company, to lease
the premises at Flat B, 56th Floor, Tower 1 and Car Parking No. 1-224 on 1st
Floor, The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(“Premises”) for a term of two years commencing 15 May 2006 at a monthly
rent of HK$55,000. The premises are used as housing accommodation for
staff or guests of the Company. The Tenancy Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company and details of which were
announced on 15 May 2006. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007,

total rent paid in respect of the Tenancy Agreement was HK$578,000.

The independent non-executive Directors considered that the above

continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(3) inaccordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and

Shareholders as a whole.
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The External Auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the above

continuing connected transaction:

(1) have been approved by the Board;

(2) have been entered into in accordance with the terms as contained in

the Tenancy Agreement; and

(3) have not exceeded the caps as disclosed in the announcement of the

Company dated 15 May 2006.

DIRECTORS’” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the connected transactions disclosed above and those transactions
disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly
subsisted at 31 March 2007 or at any time during the fifteen months ended
31 March 2007.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Directors” and chief executive’s interests in securities are set out
in the section “Directors’” and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” in

the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Substantial Shareholders’” interests in securities are set out in the
section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

AR\ A ) ANIEAZ B R L R A B AL
By e

(1) CHEERGMAE
Q) HRARHLG ik

RN RIEFOERL 5 K&

() MMEEBAR AR _FFNFELH A
f A A o BT 4 R O 4F IR o

A AT LG RM £

Wk S 404 e B R 5 oy o s i o M 33 [
W77 58 5 ) T AR % 55 5 B > A Rl BUHAT:

AT Jag 2 ) M A T S 3 A A P S A R BAR
HIEAD - A R 2 S R A
FRAME - WHR ZFFLFE=ZH=+—HK
R FRLE=H = H kR
AL AR bR ) A7 4

3 AT B R R R A

o AT A 09 3 A L A2 R
SRR o 0 T B A Y 25
36— -

TR R Y R R A

E R A R R R R RO (SRR )
A [ 2R A v S b4 o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 19 to 49 in the Corporate
Governance Report of this Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Events after the date of Balance Sheet of the Company are set out in Note

34 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”), the External Auditors of the Company, who was first appointed
on 19 July 2004 in place of Grant Thornton. PwC will retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report
38 A% U i e

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

TR K I8 g3 6 E AT

To the shareholders of VXL Capital Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VXL Capital
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 62 to 138, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated profit and loss
account, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the fifteen-month period then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the fifteen-month period
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 July 2007

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
T8 ST A% SR A

B AR

A BT RARTEIRAM B A% B2 5 A e I s
WRMEHER - WA RRDEE141
A ) BE BRI > BR UL 2 SN MR
L H A o FATAE AR I A AT HoAth
AL A EBURIEAET AT -

TR CARSER A v B A & AL 10 A v A Ve
RIBEAT A% o 70 BB YE HI SR A M <7 1 1A
o MR BRAT A o DL IR BL A B
AR AT A A RS R B

WAL BB TRE Fy LIS ] s e T
B BRI IR o P AR T B
TR BT Y T > LA A A SRR B R T
HLEUBS R AP RS BRI Y ST o TERE
b2 S B IRs - A BT % i B 2 v A S e L
T 2T 51 e B B SRR AR B ) PR R e il > A
S AR R > IR 300 W B R ER
PERIRE SRS R o BN R S
A E s ECR IS Y KR ) g G R
9 & BEE > DL AT B s R B R R A
£ o

FRADALE - FAM P I e 1Y 2 2 H e it 70 AL A
LT T Y B A R S P A o

)
&

WAEES - AR B R DA W B
WO MR E AP b BAF R B4
Bk T LFE=A =+ B EBHRN
Lo BARFECERZ H AR T8 A I e 2R K
Byt - 3 O 4% S s (A R GBI 2 7 B
o

R SCR A T i
BB

i > “EFTLFELATILA

oA LA BR A W 2006/2007 AR

61




62

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

e iHm iR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 £ ~FFEEF=H =1—H L +ZMHH

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005 %
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g Tt TH#T
Revenue W i 5 SRR 7,536
Other operating income FAb A IA 5 2,929 4,299
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired IS & A 2 A F(E &
over costs of acquisition WL A 2 R 32 91,536 -
Fair value gain on investment properties & &W)ZE /T EHEA 15 8,719 33,574
Staff costs & & BiA 6 (24,788) (12,043)
Other operating expenses HAh A8 B (44,001) (21,693)
Profit on disposal of a subsidiary Hh A — ] 8 2 w0 3k 7 715 -
Operating profit R 1 A 8 69,049 11,673
Finance costs RilE A 9 (16,236) (1,348)
Share of losses of associates JEAG Tk vl s 4R 18 (476) (465)
Profit before taxation BB i ¥ 1 52,337 9,860
Taxation credit/(charge) BUIEIK R, (G ) 10 11,207 (5,793)
Profit attributable to shareholders I SR A1 ¥ ) 11 63,544 4,067
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary AN F RN, E A
share attributable to shareholders of O A 5 PR 0 PR R A e,
the Company for the period/year g ) 12 HK$0.87 HK$0.06

The notes on pages 70 to 138 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
AR EEAER

As at 31 March 2007 W - ZEELFE=H=1—H

31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i T T
Non-current assets JE ) &
Property, plant and equipment ERR S 14(a) 5,550 5,105
Investment properties d-¢7ES 15 891,561 143,000
Goodwill PR 16 18,314 18,314
Interests in associates Wi s i 18 35,009 -
Available-for-sale financial assets Rt AR 19 556 476
950,990 166,895
Current assets VB
Financial assets at fair value through N EZ AR R SR
profit or loss ZHTE 20 16,505 591
Trade and other receivables & 5 K H A E R IE 21 6,506 10,048
Bank balances and cash SRATHE AR S & 22 20,970 122,971
43,981 133,610
Current liabilities mE) E AR
Trade and other payables B 5 RN REAT I 23 409,881 10,335
Long-term bank loan RISRIT R 24 3,000 2,174
Obligations under finance leases T A R Af 25 345 465
Amount due to holding company JREAFE B A B 3H 26 129,551 -
542,777 12,974
Net current (liabilities)/assets B (AfR) G EEHE (498,796) 120,636
Total assets less current liabilities HEOE R B A R 452,194 287,531
Non-current liabilities I A
Long-term bank loan RHAERIT K 24 97,000 74,826
Obligations under finance leases Fl Y AL B R AR 25 86 667
Deferred tax liabilities R S T A 27 55,707 18,526
152,793 94,019
Net assets B EE 299,401 193,512
B RA R 2006/2007 ik
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

e EEAER @

As at 31 March 2007 W = EELE=H=—1—H

31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 T#on THIT

Financed by: BRI
Share capital A 28 15,280 14,400
Reserves Tt s 29(a) 284,121 179,112
Shareholders’ funds TR R 4 299,401 193,512

Approved by the Board of directors on 19 July 2007 and signed on behalf of A Z=&&E-H4E-H L HEE S g - i ih

the Board by T ERAREFTGHE
Datuk LIM Chee Wah Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
PREE e S A
Director Director
#HH HF
The notes on pages 70 to 138 form part of these financial statements. SR70H B 138 H Z Mt B A BB R 2 — ¥
fiy -
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Balance Sheet
G AfE

As at 31 March 2007 W - ZEELFE=H=1—H

31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B T THIo
Non-current assets I & E
Property, plant and equipment ERR ST i) 14(b) 3,624 3,650
Interests in subsidiaries B J 2 ) A 17 10,000 9,000
Available-for-sale financial assets AL Y A 19 556 476
14,180 13,126
Current assets T A
Financial assets at fair value through HAFEE R A R
profit or loss ZHBTEE 20 16,505 591
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HA IS R IE 21 1,465 3,989
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAL St 2 il kI 17 286,281 56,597
Bank balances and cash SRATHS % KB 4 22 449 112,436
304,700 173,613
Current liabilities ) E AR
Trade and other payables A 5 R HA AT 370E 23 2,058 1,799
Obligations under finance leases Pl R A 25 345 465
Amount due to holding company JREAT B R FOH 26 129,551 -
131,954 2,264
Net current assets B R A 172,746 171,349
Total assets less current liabilities AT S A B £ 186,926 184,475
Non-current liabilities E/ T UEEE
Obligations under finance leases il A B A 25 86 667
Net assets B 186,840 183,808
B RA R 2006/2007 ik
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Balance Sheet (Continued)

EEAEE @

As at 31 March 2007 W = EELE=H=—1—H

31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B T-#0 T

Financed by: B AR
Share capital B A 28 15,280 14,400
Reserves Tt 29(b) 171,560 169,408
Shareholders’ funds RO 4 186,840 183,808

Approved by the Board of directors on 19 July 2007 and signed on behalf of A =FZE-L44E-LA HILHE#ESa@E » ik

the Board by UTNERAREHGHE
Datuk LIM Chee Wah Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
RBEE SR e A
Director Director
=H FHH
The notes on pages 70 to 138 form part of these financial statements. 570 H 138 H Z [ sk i A s ik 2 —
By o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ARe s B R

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 #E L LaE=H="1—HITHMA

Available-
for-sale
financial
Share Share assets Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
L
B
JBAS Ty il MESLGEME  PREE A k]
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TH#TT TH#TT THTT THTT THTT T
At 1 January 2005 REEERFE—H—H 14,400 116,612 - - 58213 189,225
Changes in fair value of AR D B
available-for-sale A PEZ 5 E)
financial assets - - 220 - - 220
Net profit for the year A IR R B A
attributable to shareholders ¥ Al {#&H - - - - 4,067 4,067
At 31 December 2005 MRoFFRF 14,400 116,612 220 - 62,280 193,512
+-HA=+—H
Changes in fair value of AR D B
available-for-sale A PEZ 5 E)
financial assets - - 80 - - 80
Translation exchange difference AR T 25 AR - - - 7,588 - 7,588
Net income recognized B R
directly in equity A ONEE | - - 80 7,588 - 7,668
Issue of shares (Note 28) BTy (B 5E28) 880 33,797 = = = 34,677
Net profit for the period S A0 BRI A i ) 5
attributable to shareholders - - - - 63,544 63,544
At 31 March 2007 i s i
=H=+—H 15,280 150,409 300 7,588 125,824 299,401

The notes on pages 70 to 138 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 £ ~FFEEF=H =1—H L +ZMHH

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 T T
Operating activities G
Profit before taxation R HiT v A1) 52,337 9,860
Adjustments for: P
Share of losses of associates JREAL Wik ) e 4 476 465
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired I &2 2 A F{E B #
over costs of acquisition B P A 2 AR (91,536) -
Fair value gain on investment properties &2/ T-(HZF (8,719) (33,574)
Interest income FE WA (2,929) (4,283)
Interest expense FE X 16,236 1,348
Dividend income from listed investments | i a6 2= 4% & 2 BLE UL A - (16)
Depreciation of property, plant and LE B SR E i
equipment 3,426 1,082
Profit on disposal of a subsidiary H R T 8 2 ] v A1) 7 (715) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and B EYIZE - B S 1R
equipment 12 89
Operating loss before working capital R tEE B e S B
changes 2 88 e (31,412) (25,029)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5y Je HoAth FRE S K T (34,523) (8,473)
Increase in trade and other payables 54 5 T H A A SR IE 1 20,271 8,681
Increase in trading securities R 5y s 3 (15,914) (591)
Net cash outflow from operations P R B R (61,578) (25,412)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded, net CL AR 1] 7 P R A B TR - 275
Net cash used in operating activities K853 B I B e TR AR (61,578) (25,137)
Investing activities BEWEH)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment H§ A¥)2E - #5 K kA (4,343) (4,426)
Purchase of investment properties A &Y (279,053) (115,007)
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash HE — [ Mg A7 (kR
disposed LR 7 (63,228) -
Interest received EL AL 2,929 4,283
Proceeds for disposal of property, plant Ji& B ’f%%%‘g& i}
and equipment EESer - 56
Dividends received from an associate 2— F'F] A/ )i 22 1,125
Advances to an associate PRPERG T — R A F (900) -
Repayment from an associate —[H 5 NEVEK 3,089 -
Dividends received from investments B R R
in securities - 16
Net cash used in investing activities P& TS S Ir F B A 5 AR (341,484) (113,953)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

HAEBERER @

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007 #E L LaE=H="1—HITHMA

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006 % 1/1/2005 %
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g T T
Financing activities S )
Net proceeds from share placement JBe A3 i B i A RV 1 34,677 -
Shareholder’s loan i = 171,070 -
Deposit received from potential investors £ ISIETER & 1% & 83,086 -
Repayment of secured bank loan R R SR T B (77,000) =
Secured bank loan drawn down PREUE IR ERAT B 100,000 77,000
Capital element of finance lease rentals 5 P A A E ARy
paid (701) (263)
Interest paid EAFLE (11,124) (1,348)
Net cash from financing activities Pl TS 1 I A B 4 VAR 300,008 75,389
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4 T B4 25 (E ek (103,054) (63,701)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—H—HB & RBEEEY 122,971 186,672
Exchange gain on cash and cash Bl 4 K B 4 S5 (E ) BEE S0 i
equivalents 1,053 -
Cash and cash equivalents at WEA=+—H/+=ZHA=+—H
31 March/31 December B& LB EFEY) 20,970 122,971
Analysis of balances of cash and cash Bl kB e EM R
equivalents
Bank balances and cash SRATAEER B 22 20,970 122,971

The notes on pages 70 to 138 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A PR AR B R

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of VXL Capital Limited (the “Company”) are
investment holding, securities trading, and provision of management
services to subsidiaries, whilst those of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements. The Company has its listing on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding company
to be VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited (“VXLCPL”),

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below and have been
consistently applied to the period/year presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except as modified
by the revaluation of the investment properties, the available-
for-sale financial assets and the financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFIBUR ()

(Continued)
2.1 #mEdBEHE (4H)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

At 31 March 2007, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$498,796,000. It mainly consists of the outstanding payment
for acquisition of Changshou Commercial Plaza (“Changshou
Properties”) and amount due to holding company. Subsequent
to the period end, a bank loan facility has been obtained to finance
the acquisition of Changshou Properties, details of which are set
out in Note 34(a). The holding company of the Company,
VXLCPL, has confirmed its intention to provide sufficient financial
support to the Group so as to enable the Group to meet all its
liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and to enable

the Group to continue its business for the foreseeable future.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKEFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and amendments to
HKEFRSs, which are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2006. The Group has adopted the following
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation issued up to 31 March
2007 which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to these

financial statements.

HoEELFEZA=+—H > AE
I A i B B TR A 498,796,000 6
7t EEARE W RSN ERY
([RAEWEE]) Z ARAT 3E KA
JBA RIFRIE o A AR A AR > SRAT
R O R LA A S AT i
REWE > BRI MEE34(@)
AR E Z HE LA RIVXLCPLE fEsR
A A H iRt R MBS E B 2
] » DAE AR A 45 M B AT BT A 2 3
AT L FEH > AT A £ A 4
] TE LR AR A AR A LR -

A BAT A it vl S e R L) 2 B
B RTERMAE TERG
wt o [ IR IR 2 B A B OA
B & EOR @A ARl -
I 5 ) B W e B R A 2 T
T Bl B A AR S B R
FREME RGBT - M4

i -

TN G CE M2 EHR =%
TANE—A— HRZ KRG &t
S ) A B0 2 T RT AR AE AT (R v A 5
et e R o AR EBRAN T 51
FELFE=H=+—H S i
SHLHLEH I A B R A B 2 (G
W YE ) 2 BT R R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 39(Amendment)
HKAS 21(Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

The Fair Value Option
Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease

There was no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements arising from the adoption of the above mentioned new

and revised accounting standards.

The Group has not applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs, which have been issued but effective for periods

beginning on or after 1 November 2006 and are pertinent to the

Group'’s operations, in the financial statements:

HKAS 1(Amendment)

HKEFRS 7
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

Presentation of Financial
Statements: Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Operating Segments

Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFIBUR ()

(Continued)
2.1 #mEBEHE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment), effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007, will affect the disclosures of qualitative information
concerning the Group’s objective, policies and processes for
managing capital, quantitative data about what the Group regards
as capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and

consequences of any non-compliance.

HKERS 7, effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January

2007, introduces new disclosures relating to financial instruments.

HKERS 8, effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008, supersedes HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting” and requires
the reporting of financial and descriptive information about the
reportable segments on the basis of internal reports that are

regularly reviewed by its management.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, effective for periods beginning on or after 1
November 2006, prohibits the impairment losses recognized in
an interim period on goodwill, investments in equity instruments
and investments in financial assets carried at cost to be reversed

at a subsequent balance sheet date.

The adoption of these new and revised accounting standards is
not likely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position except for additional disclosures

to be made in the financial statements of the Group.

REFFLFE—A—HERZ K%
Z R (i g wt R 55198
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to

31 March 2007.

(a)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one

half of the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated

from the date such control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
(which would have been known as negative goodwill under
the previous accounting policy) is recognized directly in the

profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds from the disposal of
the subsidiary and its carrying amount as of the date of
disposal, including any attributable amount of goodwill and

any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognized at cost.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net
of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on

acquisition (Note 2.7).

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFIBOR ()

(Continued)
2.2 HEHkE ()

(b)  Associates (Continued) (b) HEosal (48)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

76

The Group’s share of its associates” post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognized in the profit and loss account, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognized in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFIBUR ()

(Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting 2.3 SrEfERkh

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services. A geographical segment is
engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment. Both types of segments are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business/

geographical segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system,
the Group has determined that business segments be presented
as the primary reporting format and geographical segments as
the secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar

terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)

that are expected to be used for more than one period.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on
the jurisdiction in which the customers are located and total assets

and capital expenditure are where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

()

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the

Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognized in the profit and loss account.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial

assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

@i assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(@ii) income and expenses for each profit and loss account
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates

of the transactions); and

(iif)

all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognized in

the profit and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2. EHEEHBOR )

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 W)k - BEAR Skl

80

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the profit and loss account during the financial period in which

they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Furniture and fixtures 3 -5 years
— Office equipment 3 -5 years
— Computer and related equipment 3 -5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately to write down an
asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.8). Gains and losses on disposals are determined by

comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFFIBUR ()

(Continued)

2.6 Investment property 2.6 REYIHE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, which is not occupied by the companies in

the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases

and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted
for as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for

as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs, except when it is acquired through a
business combination, in which case it is measured initially at fair
value. After initial recognition, investment property is carried at

fair value.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. Changes in fair values are recognized in the profit and loss

account.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial

period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired subsidiary, associate, or business attributable to the

Group at the effective date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses is included
in intangible assets while goodwill on acquisitions of associates
is included in “Interests in associates”. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity or business include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity or business sold.
Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of

impairment testing.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries, associates or business
(negative goodwill), is recognized immediately in the profit and

loss account.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and

value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets (Continued)

are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.

Investments

The Group has classified its investments in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including trading and other investments), loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are included
in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in equity.
When available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the profit and

loss account.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing

models refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFFIBOR ()

(Continued)
2.9 #& ()

2.9 Investments (Continued)

84

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator in
determining whether the securities are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the profit and
loss account) is removed from equity and recognized in the profit
and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and
loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the

profit and loss account.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorganization, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized

in the profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, cash investments with a maturity of three months or less

from date of investment and bank overdrafts.

212 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

2.13 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss
account except to the extent that they relate to items recognized

directly in equity, in which case they are recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date, and

any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGHBUOR (H)

(Continued)
2.13 et (%8)

2.13 Income tax (Continued)

86

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Taxation rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are used to

determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest

expense.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Employee benefits

(a)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or

paternity leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

(b)  Bonus plans
The expected cost of bonus payments are recognized as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and

a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

()

Pension obligations

The Group has a defined contribution retirement plan and
the assets are held in independent mutual funds. The
pension plan is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant companies within the Group

based on a percentage of the employee’s basic salary.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution

retirement plan are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”). The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognized as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. It recognizes the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
profit and loss account, and a corresponding adjustment to

equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

217 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably on the following bases:

iii)

iv)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Corporate advisory fees are recognized as revenue when the
agreed services have been provided.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Realized gain/loss on trading of securities is recognized on

a trade date basis.

v)  Unrealized gain/loss on trading securities is recognized when
trading securities are restated to fair value at the reporting
date.

vi) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.18 Leases
(a)  Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Leases (Continued)

(b)  Finance leases
Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of
the finance cost is recognized in the profit and loss account
over the lease period so as to produce a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance lease is depreciated over the shorter of the useful

life of the asset and the lease term.

2.19 Insurance contracts

The Company regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect
of mortgage facilities provided to a subsidiary as insurance
contract. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the
liabilities under its insurance contracts using current estimates of
future cash flow. Changes in carrying amount of these insurance

liabilities are recognized in the profit and loss account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEFIBUR ()

(Continued)
2.20 SR BB R BN

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be

recognized as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognized but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits

is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and fair value interest-rate
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”), United States Dollars (“USD”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from its investments which are
located in the PRC. Considering that the exchange rate
between HK$ and USD is pegged, and that RMB is
appreciating, the Group believes its downside foreign

exchange risk is minimal.

(ii) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because the Group’s result is affected by the fluctuation
in the market price of investments held by the Group
which are classified as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

(b)  Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, investments and bank deposits. The
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing

basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, these receivables
are due within 3 days from the date of billing. Reminders
are sent to the debtors with balances that are more than 14

days overdue.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of investments and bank deposits, the Group has
diversified its exposures into different financial institutions.
It has policies in place to assess the credit standing of the
counterparties and financial institutions before the Group

invests its assets.

Liquidity risk
The Group maintains liquidity by obtaining funding from

the holding company and bank facilities.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from treasury deposits,
other investment activities and long-term borrowings. The
Group monitors and limits its interest rate risk exposure
through management of maturity profile, currency mix and

choice of fixed and floating interest rates.

3.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is

based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The

quoted market prices used for quoted investments held by the

Group are the closing bid prices.

The fair value of debtors and prepayments, cash and cash

equivalents, creditors and accruals and current borrowings are

assumed to approximate their carrying amount due to the short-

term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using the

expected future payments discounted at market interest rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note 2

above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

disclosed below.

(a)

(b)

Classification as investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether the newly acquired property
qualifies as an investment property. In making its judgment, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by an entity and the level of
ancillary services provided to the tenants. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to
property but also to other assets used in the production or supply
process. Taking into consideration of all the factors, the Group
considers the newly acquired properties to be investment

properties.

Estimate of fair value of investment property

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar property, lease and other contracts. The Group engages
external independent professional valuers to carry out the
valuation annually on an open market for existing use basis, and
adopts such valuation as the fair value of investment property. In
making the judgment, consideration is given to assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the balance
sheet date and appropriate capitalization rates. These estimates
are regularly compared to the actual market data and actual

transactions available.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

It is the Group’s policy to recognize deferred tax assets for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilized, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily depends on management’s expectation of
future taxable profit that will be available against which tax losses

can be utilized.

Estimated impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or assets that
have indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an
asset or a cash-generating unit has been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates, such as discount rates, future profitability and growth

rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5. 2§ - H AL U A B 4358

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION <2
The Group is principally engaged in property investment, securities AL EHAEF Y ERE > BHHE R
trading and investment, and the provision of financial services. Revenue B o LARAREB RS o RN HER
and other operating income recognized during the period/year are as Z g B A AR B I AR
follows:
1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005 %
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TH#IT
Revenue/Turnover West, 8 SR
Corporate advisory fees A SE ] 22 21,954 4,923
Rental and other fee income FH A S HoAth 2 B A 9,990 2,641
Fair value gain/(loss) from AR E 2 A TE
listed investments AR/ (&) 1,995 (28)
33,939 7,536
Other operating income Foft s
Interest income from FR A
— bank deposits — SATAEK 2,311 4,268
— finance leases — Mg 536 -
— trading investments - HEHEE 82 15
Dividend income from listed investments bR EOE 2 S - 16
2,929 4,299
The Group has reclassified its interest income from revenue/turnover RN EF R A B SR E N BN AL+
to other operating income because cash investment is not considered FES > AL R B A Bk
by the directors as the Group’s principal activities. Accordingly, the SER AT R A AR O o TR > 4%
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current FFEAHZ 25077 HRET B HR
period’s presentation. Vig
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REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Summarized details

of the business segments are as follows:

a) the property investment segment is engaged in operation of the

investment properties;

b) the securities trading and investment segment is engaged in
securities trading and investment and other investment holding.
The revenue of this segment mainly comprises net income from

investment and trading securities;

¢) the financial services segment is engaged in the provision of
corporate finance and advisory services and operational and

financial leasing of assets; and

d) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than those
specified in (a) to (c) above and includes that of the corporate

office.

Capital expenditures comprise additions to property, plant and
equipment (Note 14) and investment properties (Note 15). Segment
assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, goodwill, investments and receivables. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly
represent assets and liabilities used by the corporate office, which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment. They include items
such as deferred taxation and corporate borrowings. Interest income
has been reclassified from segment revenue to unallocated operating
income in accordance with the reclassification of interest income from
revenue/turnover to other operating income. Accordingly, the
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current

period’s presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments
(Continued)

The segment results, major non-cash items and capital expenditures
based on business segments for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2007 and the year ended 31 December 2005 are as follows:

Wess ~ oAt AL WA B a8
R (50

BRI — B (D

BE-FBLF=A=+—H LA
BABRE-FERE+F A=t H L
I BEHAZ WS EE RS

98

T H B EA B SRS T
Securities Inter-
Property tradingand  Financial ~ segment
investment investment services elimination Unallocated Group
o HH ST RAME
ES 84 R#&E SRR B JH AL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THT THT Tt T TiTT TTT
For the fifteen months ended WEZRLLA
31 March 2007 SA=FT—HETEMEA
Segment revenue: Sribs
Sales to external customers HINE P E 9,990 1,995 21,954 - - 33,939
Inter-segment revenue o ilien - - 824 (824) - -
Total segment revenue oy AR R 9,990 1,99 2,778 (824) - 33,939
Segment results SRR 99,422 1,940 9,121 110,483
Unallocated operating income ~ RAEAE A
and expenses, net R B3R (41,434)
Finance costs A& A (16,236)
Share of losses of associates TEffi A Rl (476)
Profit before taxation B4 B 52,337
Taxation credit BRI 11,207
Profit attributable to shareholders A% f v Fl 63,544
Other segment information Jofl g R R
Excess of fair value of net assets  FUit BT & 2 A T-H
acquired over costs of BRI R A 2
acquisition (Note 32) e (BfE32) 91,536 - - - - 91,536
Fair value gain on investment BEYFEAFEE
properties (Note 15) (b 3E15) 8,719 - = = = 8,719
Depreciation g 246 - 320 - 2,860 3,426
Capital expenditures EARX 729,028 - 718 - 3,436 733,182
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REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

5. Weas ~ HA AR WA Kok

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION R ()
(Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments FEFE A — EHESE (EH)
(Continued)
Property Financial
investment services Unallocated Group
AL
WHRE bR JHH PN
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T TT
For the year ended BE_TTNLE
31 December 2005 TZA=F—HIEEE
Segment revenue: Vin:lie
Sales to external customers BN F 2,641 4,923 - 7,536
Segment results ViR E S 33,973 (3,641) 30,274
Unallocated operating income ARAFAEIA
and expenses, net bR SEAR (18,601)
Finance costs A A (1,348)
Share of losses of associates JE AWl B (465)
Profit before taxation AT Fl 9,860
Taxation charge FiIAS (5,793)
Profit attributable to shareholders A MELG I Fl 4,067
Other segment information Joft g3 R R
Fair value gain on investment BEWENTE
properties (Note 15) A (f3E15) 33,574 = = 33,574
Depreciation e 64 110 908 1,082
Capital expenditures EARX 110,000 195 5,052 115,247

54 A R A A

2006/2007 4F ¥k
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5. af ~ HAAL 2 A B 43-#6
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION EFH ()
(Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments FEHE T — BB ()
(Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities based on business segments as at MEFRLF=H =+ —HE T HF
31 March 2007 and 31 December 2005 are as follows: ToAZ+—H o BB ERE
BB EHEIIT
Securities
Property trading and Financial
investment  investment services Unallocated Group
HHHH RO
WHERE B##E SR JHH ASEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk T T#T T
At 31 March 2007 AR LFE=A=1—H
Segment assets v 912,941 16,557 1,196 8,298 938,992
Interests in associates s Al 4R 35,009
Bank balances and cash RITHER LB & 20,970
Total assets B 994,971
Segment liabilities bR 405,306 - 452 4,554 410,312
Bank loans HATEK 100,000
Amount due to holding company  BEfTH#EB 2 7] R 129,551
Deferred tax liabilities EIEBLIA £ 55,707
Total liabilities A A 695,570
At 31 December 2005 REFZHEFZHA=1—H
Segment assets i v 164,587 2,385 2,721 7,841 177,534
Bank balances and cash SATHER B4 122,971
Total assets B 300,505
Segment liabilities R 2,090 - 2,156 7,221 11,467
Bank loans SRITEK 77,000
Deferred tax liabilities EAEBLIA £ 18,526
Total liabilities AR 106,993
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REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical

segments

The Group’s three business segments operate in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The segment revenue and capital expenditures based on
geographical segments for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007
and the year ended 31 December 2005 are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. Weas ~ HA AR WA Kok
g ()

KRBT A — HuE 4

7 £ 1) = K SETS 43 B B A s % o R A
BoBE_FZLF=HA=1T—HItLt+H
A k#EE - FFRFE+A=+—HIE
AERE > FHh R AR 2 4R S B G AR B S

#HF A
1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt THT
Revenue s
Hong Kong B 33,939 7,536
Capital expenditures BAPE X
Hong Kong s 2,963 115,247
PRC i 730,219 -
733,182 115,247

Revenue is categorized based on the jurisdiction in which the customers
are located, while capital expenditures are classified based on where

the assets are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING INCOME
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments (Continued)

The segment assets based on geographical segments as at 31 March
2007 and 31 December 2005 are analyzed as follows:

5. Wezw ~ HAth R WO S o R

R (50

WREH T — Mo ()

N EEEFE=ZH=+—HE _EELF
T A=+ —H o R S E

AU -

31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt THIo

Total assets B AR
Hong Kong T 201,667 293,176
PRC H 793,304 7,329
994,971 300,505

Total assets are categorized based on where the assets are located.

6. STAFF COSTS

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all

directors” emoluments (Note 13).

B SRR YRR R T E AT 0

6. 18 B A

TXHEEEER AEeREE ME

(BH5E13)) Z A8 B HliAs

102

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to

31/3/2007 31/12/2005

1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%

31/3/2007 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#T T

Directors’ fees WS 875 654
Salaries and bonus Hi S AEAL 21,973 10,189
Unutilised annual leave KRB Z R 40 327
Pension costs — defined contribution plan IRAR B A — E R R 570 191
Others HoAty 1,330 682
24,788 12,043
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DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

In February 2006, the Group set up a PRC subsidiary, VXL International
Leasing Company Limited, via VXL Investments Holdings Limited
(“VXLIHL”) and Million Sky Investments Limited (“MSIL”), both of

which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

On 9 October 2006, VXLIHL entered into an agreement with VXLCPL
to dispose of 55% of VXLIHL's equity interest in MSIL together with
the shareholder’s loan owing by MSIL to VXLIHL for a total
consideration of HK$42,070,000. The disposal was approved by the
independent shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 14 November 2006. The profit on disposal amounted to HK$715,000.

The effect of the disposal is summarized as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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EH%_‘FHEJ FHf JE 2> W
NZEENFEN > REEBEARAFZ
A A A ) — o A P A R
([EL A ) o KA BRAs w] (TE R
B 1) RS — ] v [ BB 2 v — s
HEFRAH o

ATTRENETHILH > B K B
VXLCPLAT L —TE ik » 8 s id gk
B R 2 55 % IO A 4 T2 88 R A5 A
REREZRRER > BRE S
42,070,000%57C » B R E R ZFE N
A —H 0 H AT 2 ORI R & Bt
HERZ B IH o B Z715,000%
T o

HESHIH BT

HK$'000

T
Total assets B AR 133,440
Total liabilities =livk (134,930)
Net liabilities AR (1,490)
55% interest disposed Jit 65 2 55 % HE 4t (820)
Exchange reserve realized T35 2 T S0 (et i (657)
Shareholder’s loan assigned JiT e > % R K 42,832
Profit on disposal HH B i Al 715

42,070
Satisfied by: PR 3177 3 AT
Promissory note” s 42,070
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: B A AR B T A
Bank balances and cash disposed it 8 2 SRAT 4G R S B 4 (63,228)

The promissory note was utilized to set off against the loan from the

holding company.

F RS A RS I A m B R 2

SEAs
Hpk

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

8. OPERATING PROFIT 8. RE¥aA|

104
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1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
THIT TH#EIT
Operating profit is arrived at after charging/ AR I A R 2 1B,
(crediting): FrA)
Legal and professional fees YT E g 3,148 2,208
Consultancy fee Jif ) 7,748 6,844
Rental income from investment properties B EY S IA (9,986) (2,641)
Direct outgoings for investment properties s -¢/ES-K: 153 5,651 2,082
Depreciation Prgg 3,426 1,082
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BB ~ B A
equipment IR 12 89
Auditors’ remuneration BT 5
- audit — 737 655
—non-audit — FEH 969 473
Net exchange loss BEE 52 s 48 457 7 687 55
Operating leases — land and buildings REE — i Jis 8,541 2,484
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MhEA
1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005 %
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THIT
Interest on bank loan wholly repayable within ~ TL4F A& Bff 12 2 S8R4T
five years BHFE 2,966 =
Interest on bank loan wholly repayable more AR BB R 2 SRAT
than five years FEHHE 5,080 1,307
Interest on finance leases Ei§-giEh=v PSS 58 25
Other interest expenses on amounts wholly HAENBEERZ HIHZ
repayable within five years FHoAt A8 S 8,132 16
16,236 1,348




10. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax is assessed at the statutory rate of 17.5% (year
ended 31 December 2005: 17.5%) on the assessable profit for the period.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the period at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates. There is no profits tax provided
as the Group did not have any assessable profit for the period (year

ended 31 December 2005: HK$NIl).

The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to the consolidated profit

and loss account represents:

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

10. BiJE

vk R A5 B AR B A T R SRR Ve ] 4%
17.5% @E_ZEHF+ A =1+—Hlk
GERE © 17.5%) ZIEEBLRBUR - WgHMITR
i L R A 5 T 888 T i I ¢ 2 i P B
FRAGEEZ S B AT o A
B 7 S0 A S A e JRE RS i 1 > WA B
W AEFHEA SR BE T AFE+H
=t H IR ) -

HAEHRMEIRERND GEA) /AR BIET)
f5

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to

31/3/2007 31/12/2005

1/1/2006 % 1/1/2005%

31/3/2007 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

TH#IT THIT

Deferred tax (credit)/charge (Note 27) PESERIIE () S (f5E27) (11,207) 5,793

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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AR i P o

10. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable

to the results of the consolidated companies as follows:

10. BiIH ()

$%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ2ﬁﬁﬁ#@m%@%
UNGIE S Pl S o e i - i
B2 AR

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006 % 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T T
Profit before taxation PR i vas £l 52,337 9,860
Share of losses of associates JREAL /A Rl s 4R 476 465
Profit before taxation — Company and BRELATRE A — AN F &
subsidiaries it g 2~ ) 52,813 10,325
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable FER A B 2
to profits in the respective countries BB R T 2 BiIH 23,044 1,807
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN IR B S 2 B T R R - 185
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue GBI Z Bl T 5 28 (30,502) (750)
Tax effect on temporary differences not ARTERR L R 22 R0
recognised o T g 2 309 (285)
Deferred tax assets on tax losses not recognised FMEFR B IE R 2 R AR B 9,254 4,836
Change in PRC income tax rate (note) B T A B B () (13,312) =
Tax (credit)/charge B (K% /3 (11,207) 5,793
Note: Wk

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new CIT Law”). The
new CIT Law reduces the corporate income tax rate for domestic enterprises
and foreign invested enterprises from 33% to 25% with effect from 1 January
2008. As a result of the new CIT Law, the carrying amount of deferred tax
liabilities has been reduced by HK$13,312,000 for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2007.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

Mo FEFBEZH/NH > dEE N BRI E 4R
EREBIE (DS EIL]) B b e AR
B 2 N RAGRR S o BB N &
R ANE A AZEFTBIZE H133% WK 2
25% > il B ZFZ/)\AFE—H — H B4R - it
HIRBUER R AN FARE - FELE=
H=4—H Ik HA8 A 2 R g Bl A i 2 ik
T {E IR KK 1713,312,00045 7T °



11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of
the Company to the extent of a loss of HK$31,725,000 for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2007 (year ended 31 December 2005: loss of
HK$8,406,000).

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
ORDINARY SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of HK$63,544,000
(year ended 31 December 2005: HK$4,067,000) and the weighted
average number of 73,315,165 (year ended 31 December 2005:
72,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the period.

The basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share are the same as the
Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for the

period/year ended 31 March 2007 and 31 December 2005.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

11.

12.

S5 A P

e SR Al ¥ )

AR AR H N R 2 S R TR
HAZ+—H b+ HA8 A Z BORREAG 5] 24
JEi1H31,725,00085 0 (BB —FF L4E+Z
H=+1—HIL4FE : §1H8,406,000%

Jo) °

A BRI A4 A
B 108 PR R A e v v A

R R R A T 08 ) T AR R B N A
S 2 IRSRRE A 167 F1l63,544,000%5 7T (k&
CEEREF A= —HIEFERE

4,067,000%570) J B 31738 40 e 2 T
¥19473,315,165 /1 (B2 —FFH4F+H
=+ —H L4 : 72,000,000/ 515 °

HRAAFARBE_FRLFE=H=4—
HIEWIE kS E = F T RFE+ A=+
H 14 BN e HL S B C AT T
T o ke AR A e R AR % 4 9 Vi A AR
[l o

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

13. DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors” emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors for the

fifteen months period ended 31 March 2007 were as follows:

13. 355 N = A0S PR T 4

()

M
B o B 45 2 S A 8
FEEAZ+—HIE T
RS

—EEL

— R

HIHZ

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of director Fees Salaries bonuses benefits** scheme Total

(=3

ke
% M #e WA JUeEAe SR Eak
HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T Tt Tl Tl Tl Tl
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) MEELE () - - - - = =
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO i titifi ek - 3,101 250 649 15 4,015
Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching Bor (i) SRR (i) = 2,148 700 = 14 2,862
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi fEbiat - 1,255 8 - 15 1,355
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing REESAE 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, ].P. SR KT L 250 - - - - 250
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. ZMEREL AT A 375 = = = = 375
875 6,504 1,035 649 4 9,107
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors for the

year ended 31 December 2005 were as follows:

S5 A P

13, 35 53 [ R AR B I < (D)

(a) FHEFBHE (B

EfTEEAT S E S
E+ZH=+—H IL4EE 240
T

Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of director Fees Salaries bonuses benefits** scheme Total
(753
HiRkMkaE
HREY s E WA JtbmA AR et |
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Datuk LIM Chee Wah () HEEEE Q) - - - - - -
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO il 57 - 2137 - 363 10 2510
Mr. Stephen YUEN Ching Bor (i) R (1) 108 265 - - 2 375
Ms, Patsy SO Ying Chi fbat = 788 7 = 10 873
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing REBELE 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. F R AT 4 200 = - - - 200
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. AW TS L 71 - - - - 71
Mr. Alexander AU Siu Kee (iii) BREERIEA (i) 29 - - - - 29
Mr. Paul Steven Paul Steven
SERFATY (iii) SERFATYSEA: (ii) 46 - - - - 46
Mr. Michael CHUM Hon Wang (ii) RERIELE (i) = = = = = =
654 3,190 75 363 2 4,304
**  Other benefits include housing allowance. o HAAR R A 5 R A o
(i)  An executive director, Datuk LIM Chee Wah has waived his () —ZPITEFABEESEREEEE

emolument for the period ended 31 March 2007 and year ended
31 December 2005.

(i) Resigned during the period ended 31 March 2007.

(iii) Resigned during the year ended 31 December 2005. Mr. Michael
CHUM Hon Wang, who resigned during the year has waived his

emolument for the year ended 31 December 2005.

(i)

(iii)

FELEZA=T—ALMNREE
FAET A AR -

W ERLE=A =+ H 1L
WHE -

PE - FF A= H
PUBEAE 647 B 2 U S
FHBE - FFRET AR
R -

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

13. DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR

13. 3 53 [ R AR B 4 (D)

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

(b) TR AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the period comprise of 3 directors and 2 employees

(year ended 31 December 2005: 2 directors and 3 employees).

The details of the emoluments payable to the 2 employees (year

ended 31 December 2005: 3 employees) during the period are

presented below.

7 [ A4 [ 4% B v S A 2 AL
AR =AERLWARE (HEE
ZHFET H=+—HILFE W
HBEHER=ZRE) - WA W %4
BE BE_FZHET—H =1—
HIEERE © =248 B) BEATIEREE
B2HUF o

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005 %
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THTT

Salaries and other short-term employee 4 T A A 0 B A )
benefits 2,687 1,992
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  #BAR&E A — & B KG#1 30 27
Others HoAth 162 207
2,879 2,226

Number of individuals

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
AN

1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005

Emoluments band i T e [
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001%5 7 - 1,000,000%5 7T — 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%5 7G - 1,500,000%5 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001#5 7G - 2,000,000%5 7T 1 -
2 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W3 ~ BEAN ikt
(a) The Group (a) A
Furniture Computer
and Office  and related Motor
fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
AR B R
Y ES i MR HHE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt SR T SR
Cost A
At 1 January 2006 REFERF—H—H 3,082 110 739 2,302 6,233
Additions NE 3,356 212 631 144 4,343
Disposals JEE (507) (36) (193) - (736)
Exchange difference e £ 14 3 1 16 44
At 31 March 2007 WEEZLEZH=1—H 5,945 289 1,188 2,462 9,884
Accumulated depreciation R T#
At 1January 2006 REFEARE—H—H 560 30 303 235 1,128
Charge for the period AT BH 5 2,416 7 353 582 3,426
Disposals RE (174) ©) (45) = (225)
Exchange difference HE 0.2 4 3 - 1 1 5
At 31 March 2007 REFZLFE=A=1—H 2,805 99 612 818 4,334
Net book value MR A
At 31 March 2007 REERLFE=A=+—H 3,140 190 576 1,644 5,550
Cost A
At 1 January 2005 WEEERE—H—H 528 87 470 = 1,085
Acquisition of business WSO T 574 - - - 574
Additions NE 2,455 97 393 2,302 5,247
Disposals RE (475) (74) (124) = (673)
At 31 December 2005 RZEERREFZA=1—H 3,082 110 739 2,302 6,233
Accumulated depreciation R 4#
At 1 January 2005 RZFLRHFE—H—H 260 87 227 = 574
Charge for the year SERIB S 649 15 183 235 1,082
Disposals JEE (349) (72) (107) - (528)
At 31 December 2005 REEZRFEFZH=Z+—H 560 30 303 235 1,128
Net book value MR A
At 31 December 2005 RZEEZREFZA=1—H 2,522 80 436 2,067 5,105
SR R AR 2006/2007 4R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AR i P o

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W3 ~ W28 Bkt ()

(Continued)
(b) The Company (b) AZAH]
Furniture Computer
and Office  and related Motor
fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
WAE BR
RIREE i MBI Tl A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$000
T Tt Tt TG THTT
Cost WA
At 1January 2006 REFRARE—A—H 2,392 56 424 1,616 4,488
Additions WE 2,671 38 72 - 2,781
Disposals to a group company i & 7 —H £ B/ - - - (455) (455)
At 31 March 2007 REZFZRHE=EA=Z+—H 5,063 94 496 1,161 6,814
Accumulated depreciation  RitH#
At 1 January 2006 REFERF—H—H 475 12 140 211 838
Charge for the period SR B 5 1,909 32 196 298 2,435
Disposals to a group company i F— & Fl A = = = (83) (83)
At 31 March 2007 RZZZRELFE=A=1—H 2,384 44 336 426 3,190
Net book value HR T
At 31 March 2007 REZZRLFE=A=1—H 2,679 50 160 735 3,624
Cost A
At 1 January 2005 RZFZRHFE—A—H 323 = 211 - 534
Additions WE 2,337 56 247 1,616 4,256
Disposals JEE (268) = (34) - (302)
At 31 December 2005 RZEEZREFZA=1—H 2,392 56 424 1,616 4,488
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZEi#
At 1 January 2005 WEEERE—H—H 86 = 36 = 122
Charge for the year SERIBA S 530 12 118 211 871
Disposals JEE (141) = (14) - (155)
At 31 December 2005 REEZFRFEF A=+ —H 475 12 140 211 838
Net book value MR A
At 31 December 2005 RZFZREFZA=+—H 1,917 44 284 1,405 3,650

(c)

The net book value of motor vehicles held under finance leases of

the Group and the Company was HK$735,000 (31 December 2005:
HK$1,405,000). None of the leases include contingent rentals.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007

(C) ASEEH S AR 4N w) AR 5 il L5 Pl 5
2 R IR E 45 735,00045 0 (—
EERE+ A=+ —H
1,405,000% T0) © 5% %5 65 AL 4E T 25
RS -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. L&Y
Group
AL
1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
At 1January A—H—H 143,000 -
Acquisition of business B SE T 397,826 109,426
Additions e 331,013 =
Fair value gain ISR B A 8,719 33,574
Exchange difference [fEE 0,25 %5 11,003 =
At 31 March/31 December REA=Z+—H/+-H=1+—H 891,561 143,000
The Group’s interests in investment properties at their net book value AR B A 15 ) 2 2 M i e FUHR T R (EL )
are analysed as follows: HranF :
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
In Hong Kong, held on: FEWE > UM EREARA
Leases of over 50 years A+FLE 143,000 143,000
Outside Hong Kong, held on: B - FLUF AR
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TR A4 748,561 -
891,561 143,000
The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2007 on an open BEYER —FFLEZA = —HBE
market value basis by an independent, professionally qualified valuer, S EAR A (BRI A — AT R A
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. Jr R A R B 22 B T (B R A T
HAfdh o

AR A BR A W 2006/2007 e | 113




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. &Y (5H)

The Group leases out certain investment properties under operating AL RS B o T ORI - %
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one month to SHA@BEEA WA Z—4 > WrTfE
one year, with an option to renew the lease at the expiry date at which JiEi i SR TE IR T iR 2R
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent FOPTRSE o a% 5 A MR B -
rentals.
The Group’s total future minimum lease rentals under non-cancellable AAE BARIEAS Pl EH RS T & 1 DA R AR
operating leases are receivable as follows: W HBAT T A8 AL B R AR A AR AH < AR A A
T
Group
AL
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$000
THIT TH#IT
Not later than 1 year A — 4 1,766 1,823
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years — 4L E A AR - 348
1,766 2,171
The details of the Group’s investment properties are set out as follows: AL 2 BOE YRR RSN
Property name Location Type Lease term
LI XA H ik Epit itk ]
112 Apartments 112 Chun Yeung Street Serviced apartments Long lease

North Point, Hong Kong

T H FElLARERE A -T2 WREXALE REIHA

Changshou Commercial Plaza Putuo District Shopping arcade Medium lease
Shanghai, the PRC

R HER Y Hh B A B [ R I A
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16.

17.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

GOODWILL 16. &
1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006 % 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FH#I0
At 1 January w—H—H 18,314 =
Acquisition of business s S s = 18,314
At 31 March/31 December R=A=+—H/+ZA=+—H 18,314 18,314
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. W A mIfE RS
Company
AN
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Tt
Non-current assets: B G -
Unlisted shares at cost JE LA F AR (E 10,000 10,000
Less: impairment provision B BRAE = (1,000)
10,000 9,000
Current assets: TE G
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE A B Ji 2 ) R I 286,281 56,597
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing JREMSC BB 2 ) RV AR - A S
and repayable on demand. SRIFFEAT o

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

AR i P o

17. M 2~ FiEas ()
UTHIIR BB LE=A=T—HES
PR 47 42 56 Y 24 )46 L
EL B L2 W A 7 -

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2007.
Principal subsidiaries are those subsidiaries that are active and have

116

commenced operations.

Principal activities
and place of

Particulars of

issued share capital/

Place of operations registered capital
Name incorporation FEEKR CETRA/ Interest held
#H GAlp R BRI Gali N EREEL o
31/3/2007  31/12/2005
Arrow Star Investment Limited HongKong  Property investment 1 ordinary share of 100%* 100%*
in Hong Kong HK$1
BEBEA R i EEBET  UREERAETZ
W FR
Grand Boom Investments Limited Samoa Investment in 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Hong Kong Us$1
TR BB A IR A P JE EEEETRE TR E{EA1%T
ARG
Great Partner International Limited Hong Kong Investment in 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Hong Kong HK$1
AR ARRA A il EEEETRE B A 178 7T
ARG
Great Partner Investment (Shenzhen) PRC Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited® consulting in PRC HK$8,000,000
BB S (R A RA A i ferpp sk ¥
Rt 8,000,000
VXL Financial Services Limited Hong Kong Corporate finance 10,000,000 ordinary 100%* 100%*
advisory in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
SEAEREARAA &b TERERA  10,0000008 (A
CEMEEERE AT BERRG
VXL Management Setvices Limited Hong Kong Management services 1 ordinary share of 100%* 100%*
in Hong Kong HK$1
SRR A RA A EiE e A1
ERME; LB
Peak Moral High Commercial PRC Property investment Registered capital of 100% =
Development (Shanghai) Limited* inPRC 1S$25,000,000
I R SR (L) R B AEREEGYRRE  EMEA25,000000% 7T
VXL Corporate Advisory (Shanghai) Limited* PRC Management and Registered capital of 100% =
consulting in PRC 1US$140,000
SRR (L) ARAT il fEFRERERE  GEMEAR140,000% T
Rk
*  Shares held directly by the Company. * ROTEAR R HEREA o
4 These companies do not have English names. These are only translation A %SOy SIS AR G o B Ry B R

of their Chinese names.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. i o F HE 4R
Group
AL
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Share of net liabilities of associates JREAL N R B B VR AR (1,024) (586)
Amounts due from associates (note a) TR A m) K (Bt k) 36,033 -
35,009 (586)
Reclassified as trade and other payable (note b)  F #5348 £ “ﬁ%&
Aty REAT FIH (K kD) - 586
35,009 -
The movement of the interests in associates is as follows: W N A e 2 BB U
Group
ARG
1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T¥I0 T
At 1 January wn—H—H = 2,286
Net (repayments from)/advances to associates WA RN AR
during the period/year Bl EEUNGIE P O IERE T ) (2,189) 1
Transfer from interests in subsidiaries BB 2 i R i 37,551 -
Share of losses before taxation JRE AL B Al B R (476) (439)
Share of taxation JRE A A T = (26)
Dividend income received from associates G =Nl ISV UN (22) (1,125)
Amount reclassified as other receivable T B EL At B R 2 #E = (1,283)

Share of deficit of an associate reclassified

(from)/to other payables (note b)

Share of exchange reserve movement during

the period

At 31 March/31 December

FOH A (8) /2 HoAh A k0E
Z EAE— B A )
Z e (D) (586) 586
H 7R3 AL EE B, ft 2
731 -

R=A=+—H/+-H=+—H 35,009 =

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(@ The Company has confirmed that the amounts due from associates are
regarded as equity in nature. Accordingly, the amounts are classified as
equity instruments, which are recognized and carried at the amount of

funding received and not subsequently remeasured.

(b)  The Group has undertaken to extend financial support to an associate to
make good of its losses. Therefore, as at 31 December 2005, the Group
has recognized its share of deficits of the associate in excess of its
investments. During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007, the Group

has advanced a shareholder loan of HK$900,000 to this associate.

The Group’s interests in its associates, all of which are unlisted, are as

18. s A vl RERE (5)

@

(b)

A0/ 7] L HERR OB 25/ 7] 3 P
VERL o [R>SO B 40
B LB M 4 AR SRR » T b 4%
O o

/k

T

AR EL R s 1] — M) W 2 ] R B
B o AR o Ft > R E R
FrZH=+—H > AEECHERHR
A2 W O ) A e A A A L B o
CEREREE=A =+ Hik TR A
] o AR 8] 1) 2 W ) A SR B
900,000 7C ©

ARAR R R 2 MRS (B b i) s

follows: IR :
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Assets B 35,232 1
Liabilities AR 36,256 587
(1,024) (586)
Revenues e i 981 —
Loss for the period/year A, AE 1R (476) (465)
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the associates are as follows:

18. s A wl e (5H)
W A AR R I F

Place of Particulars of  Interest indirectly held
Name incorporation Principal activities issued share capital by the Company
#i sl ae it ] FERH CRITRAGES  ARF R 2 iR
31/3/2007  31/12/2005
Cruise City Holdings Limited British Virgin Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 30% 30%
Islands US$1 each
SRAET R BEER 1005 T 4%
1T By
Cruise City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Cruise terminal 1 ordinary share of 30% 30%
development HK$1
HhIn (i) AR ik BRI e A 19
ZE B
Million Sky Investments Limited Samoa Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 45%* =
US$1
BRBEARAR [ L BEER IR (EA1RTT
T
VXL International Leasing Company Limited" PRC Financial leasing Registered capital of 45%* =
USD10,000,000
BB A R A I MEME  AEMEA10,000,000%7C
*  In November 2006, the Group disposed 55% interest of these companies. 0 RTEERE—H > ARG %

Prior to the disposal, the Group indirectly held 100% interest in these

companies. Details are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

A This company does not have English name. This is only a translation of

its Chinese name.

NS5 % MRS o tHARHT > A E A
%A A F100% MR o EA I B i

RMFET o

A RTINSO o R B

SCARE o

54 A R A A

2006/2007 4F ¥k
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 19. Al B A 2 S
ASSETS
Group and Company
AL H R AR ]

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005 %
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#IT THTT
At 1 January w—H—H 476 -
Reclassified from other investments H At A i R 0 - 256
Changes in fair value taken to reserve (Note 29)  # Afitifti 2 /A F-EA2H) (Ff329) 80 220
At 31 March/31 December WEA=+—H/+ZA=+—H 556 476

There was no impairment of available-for-sale financial assets for the

period/year.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

AT, AEREA o T R A i A A
B

20. 3% FE 72 18 10 25 51 Bk 2 S

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS B
Group and Company
ARG R AR T
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#T TH#IT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong held for — RpfEE 2 2 & s i A
trading, at market value B TR 16,505 591
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. 5 55 KAt Gk
Group Company
AR N
31/3/2007 31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T T T#T THT
Trade receivables (note) 2 5y SRR (&) 1,245 2,937 - -
Other receivables Hopth WS R 2,069 2,706 52 87
Receivable from an associate — — [H]Hi# /A vl i A%
in liquidation JEHRIE - 1,283 — 1,250
Prepayments and deposits TAASFRIE B e 3,192 3,122 1,413 2,652
6,506 10,048 1,465 3,989
(note)  The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as follows: (BfteE) B 2 e iR 3k 2 BR % 43 B
T
Group
ASE
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#L THTT
Within 1 month —fHH R 955 2,937
Between 1 and 3 months —EAHZ=EH ZH 290 -
1,245 2,937
Trade receivables comprise rental income and corporate advisory fee. B4 5 IR WS R ok A 456 AL < S A % A 2 J
Rental income is billed in advance on a monthly basis and the corporate % o WA ZHRELIZ H SEATEE » 38
advisory fee is billed in accordance with the agreed terms of mandates. JoL i) 22 R B UV AR 9 8 o 2 R R A R
All billings are due on presentation. o T A NREIR R AAS

AR BR A W 2006/2007 FEE | 121




Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S s H i o

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22. SRAT Rk S Bl
Group Company
AL A AT
31/3/2007 31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
T#T T#TC T#T TH#TT
Cash at banks and in hand #4773 BB & 17,940 11,623 449 1,088
Short term deposits with FEHASRATAE K
banks 3,030 111,348 - 111,348
20,970 122,971 449 112,436
The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated SRATAS R M B 2 BRTAT (L5 LR 51 B A
in the following currencies: &
Group Company
AL A AT
31/3/2007 31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T T#IC T#L TH#EIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 12,917 91,808 445 81,307
Renminbi NG 7,909 27 - -
US dollars e 140 31,136 4 31,129
Other currencies oAt & 4 - - -
20,970 122,971 449 112,436
The effective interest rate at 31 March 2007 for the short term deposits MEFLREFE=A=+—H > FIHRITHF
with banks was 1.62% (31 December 2005: within the range of 3.90% K EBRFER R S1.62% (CEERFET T
—4.31%) per annum. These deposits have maturity periods of 7 days H=Z+—H : -F3.90% —4.31%) ° %55
(31 December 2005: 7 to 31 days). TRz EAELH (CEERFEH

=t—H:tHZE=+—H) -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. B 5 B FCABEAS sk 0H
Group Company
AL AR
31/3/2007 31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T Tt T T
Trade payables (note b) B 5 AT IRAR (Ft5ED) 234 2,019 - -
Property cost payable (note ¢) MEATZERAS (i 5Ec) 291,968 = - =
Other payables and accruals ~ HARMEAIFHIH KX EFHIEE 32,822 7,730 2,058 1,799
Share of deficit of an associate & filj— 1B/ 2\ w2 s 4 - 586 - -
Deposit (note d) fier (MtaEd) 84,857 = = =
409,881 10,335 2,058 1,799
(@ The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables are () &5 B H A REAT ROH 2 MR T () LA
denominated in the following currencies: TIIERSHE
Group Company
AL AAT
31/3/2007 31/12/2005 31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#IT TH#IT T TH#IT
Hong Kong dollar It 7,261 10,335 2,058 1,799
Renminbi NG 402,620 - - -
409,881 10,335 2,058 1,799
(b) The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: b) BHEMFIEZIRE AT
Group
A
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TH#IT
Within 1 month —fHH R 184 2,001
Between 1 and 3 months —fA==MA 50 12
Over 3 months XD ERY - 6
234 2,019
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(c) This represents the remaining balance of consideration payable
for acquiring the Changshou Properties. The amount is payable
upon the drawdown of the mortgage loan on Changshou

Properties.

(d) This represents earnest monies received from potential investors
for the purpose of exploring collaboration in business
opportunities in the PRC. The amount is refundable with interest

at 12% per annum.

24. LONG-TERM BANK LOAN - SECURED

At 31 March 2007, the secured Hong Kong dollar bank loan was

repayable as follows:

23. ® 5 KA RE AT IE ()
() HE LI 2 78 A 101 2 55
B REHTER A 32 LT B3
LA -

(d) F5E e A A v B A A1
M AN 2 F5 4 o 5% 3K JE JH AR
H12JER 3 o

24. RIIHAT R — A K

ROBRLES A= —H > WA
TR HAT -

Group

N L]
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$000
T¥oo T
Within 1 year — current portion — AN — B EAER 5y 3,000 2,174
Between 1 and 2 years — 4 A 4,000 6,788
Between 2 and 5 years A 2 AR 93,000 22,982
Over 5 years FAEL | = 45,056
Non-current portion FE BRIy 97,000 74,826
100,000 77,000

The bank loan is secured over certain investment properties of the
Group with net book value of HK$143,000,000 as at 31 March 2007
(31 December 2005: HK$143,000,000) and guarantee from VXL Capital
Limited. The effective interest rate as at 31 March 2007 was 5.23%
(31 December 2005: 6%) per annum.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES  25. flt& f & & &

At 31 March 2007, the Group and the Company had obligations under REEFEEFE=A=1—H > AEB A
finance leases repayable as follows: A EIEA A A A BRI T
Group and Company
AR B A8 ]
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#L TH#IT
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease B B 2 1
payments: —RIEHEE
Within 1 year —4ER 376 508
Between 1 and 5 years —AER A 94 729
470 1,237
Future finance charges on finance lease il L A 20 il 2 (39) (105)
431 1,132
The present value of finance lease liabilities mEHE A EBRENT
is as follows:
Within 1 year — current portion — A A — BSR4 345 465
Between 1 and 5 years —HERENF 86 667
431 1,132
The effective interest rate as at 31 March 2007 on the finance lease is N ERLE=H = + H > BEHER
5.6% (31 December 2005: range from 5.6% to 6.6%) per annum. F’“Eﬂzﬁ@ 6JE (ZHEEF AT —H =+

C 5.6 E6.6/E 2 [H)

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset SRR A G LT A A e A
revert to the lessor in the event of default. A - B E B E A U AREE -

AMOUNT DUE TO HOLDING COMPANY  26. FEAF ¥ 2 wl kI8

During the period, VXLCPL, the holding company, has granted a loan Wi B RIVXL CPLER sk A 3t
of HK$129,000,000 to the Company. This loan is unsecured, bearing 129,000,000#7C TAA ] o a2 B3 4K
interest at HIBOR plus 1.75% and repayable within one year. As at *EF B s AU T R 3 BRI 75 )8t
31 March 2007, the Group has accrued interest payable of HK$551,000 BIRRE— MR - R LE=N
(31 De cember 2005 HKSNIl) on the loan: ~+ Hoo A S T A o SR 3KOR L 2

551,000%70 “EFFAFETZH =1—

H: | o

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILIITES 27. ST BT £
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally i A REA AR - TR A T B ] —
enforceable right to offset and when such accounts relate to the same AR R > VAT AR S o I s B
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows: TRHASES o HEERRANT -
Group
AREE
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$000
T T
Deferred tax assets PR FE Rl VEUE 1,421 396
Deferred tax liabilities ARIERIE £ & (57,128) (18,922)
(55,707) (18,526)
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in the R ER > A G E B ERPTER B
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the period/year IERIEE R, (B B ZILEE T -
are as follows:
Revaluation of
investment Tax
property losses Total
BEYEEA I e 15 A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T Tt Tt
At 1 January 2005 R_FEEFRF—H—H = = -
Acquisition of business (Note 32(b)) Wl (FiHsE32(b)) (12,733) - (12,733)
(Charged)/credited to profit and Gk A FHABEGERE
loss account (Note 10) (BfF5E10) (6,189) 396 (5,793)
At 31 December 2005 REFERFET_A=1+—H (18,922) 396 (18,526)
Acquisition of business (Note 32(a))  WEZERS (B 5¥32(a)) (47,331) = (47,331)
(Charged)/credited to profit and G A) FEABEGERE
loss account (Note 10) (BfF5E10) 10,182 1,025 11,207
Exchange difference e 58, 75 %H (1,057) - (1,057)
At 31 March 2007 MoFEELFEZH=1—H (57,128) 1,421 (55,707)
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILIITES (Continued) 27. WAEARLIE £ 15 ()

Unrecognized deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as follows:

R 2 BIEBIHE 2,/ (L) IR

31/3/2007 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$000

Tt T

Unutilized tax losses KE) 2 BLIE R 15,528 7,654
Accelerated depreciation allowance TR B A (29) (253)
15,499 7,401

At 31 March 2007, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s and the
Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximately HK$84,457,000 and
HK$53,682,000 (31 December 2005: HK$43,735,000 and
HK$20,727,000) respectively, which can be carried forward against
future taxable income, have not been recognized due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax
losses, HK$74,454,000 (31 December 2005: HK$43,735,000) has no
expiry date and HK$10,003,000 (31 December 2005: HK$Nil) expire
within five years under the current tax legislation. The Company’s
unutilized tax losses have no expiry date under the current tax

legislation.

MoFFEEE=A=+—H  AEELA
N R R A DAES H AR ERBLIA 2
R 5 A TR 1890 731 4 4 84,457,000 G
J}:53,682,0004 7C (" EEFAE+—H =1
—H :43,735,000% 76 520,727,000 %
J6) > EB H 48 i A A 2 A ] g
W ARE N AR o AUBBATRIES BB >
FEALEERIE RS > 74,454,000 0 (—
FERFETZH="1—H :43,735,000%
J0) 348 H T > 10,003,0009 70 (=%
FHAETZH=T—H : 8) AR AR
FHY o RIBBATBIBRMN] > AAFZKH)
JFEY 3 L s 1L A e T 3

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. A

128

Number of shares HK$'000
il THIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each 3 B T {EL0. 2035 T 2 538 B Ay
Authorized: ERE ¢
At 31 December 2005 MEFEERFET_H=T—HK
and 31 March 2007 —EEELHF=H=+—H 200,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: AT KL ¢
At 1 January 2005 and 2006 BT AR R —H TN
—H—H 72,000,000 14,400
Issue of shares on placement (note) Wi 65 R4 T A (B 5E) 4,400,000 880
At 31 March 2007 WoEZLFE=H=1+—H 76,400,000 15,280

Note: Pursuant to the Placing and Subscription Agreement entered into by
the Company on 13 November 2006, 4,400,000 existing issued ordinary
shares of HK$0.20 each held by VXLCPL were placed out to
independent investors at a price of HK$8.00 per ordinary share and
4,400,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each were subscribed by
VXLCPL at a price of HK$8.00 per ordinary share. These new ordinary
shares rank pari passu with the existing issued ordinary shares in all
aspects. The net proceeds from the placement has been applied as
general working capital of the Group.

Share option scheme

On 5 June 2005, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved
and adopted by the Company, under which the directors may, at their
discretion, offer to any employees and officers the options to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine up to a maximum
aggregate number of shares equal to 10% of the total issued shares of
the Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to allow the eligible
employees to participate in the equity of the Company in order to
motivate such employees to optimize their performance standards and
efficiency, and to attract and retain key employees whose contributions
are important to the long term growth and profitability of the Group.
The exercise price of the granted options is equal to the highest of (a)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official
closing prices of Shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer.

During the period, no share option was issued, exercised, cancelled,
lapsed or outstanding.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

W R B
29. RESERVES 29. fififfi
(a) The Group (a) A
Available-for-sale
financial
Share  assets reserve Exchange Retained
premium S reserve earnings Total
et i HHE B R HE Sk 1 R Al ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tk T T
At 1]anuary 2005 REZEHF—H—H 116,612 = = 58,213 174,825
Changes in fair value of Wk E R B
available-for-sale financial ~ AT{HZ &8
assets - 220 - - 220
Net profit for the year SRR
attributable to shareholders M V4 - - - 4067 4067
At 31 December 2005 REFERE
+ZHA=+—H 116,612 220 - 62,280 179,112
Issue of shares (Note 28) BT (H7E28) 33,797 = - - 33,797
Changes in fair value of Tt B A
available-for-sale financial AT Z 8
assets - 80 - - 80
Translation exchange SMNEHE £
difference
- Group - &6 - - 6,857 - 6,857
~ Associates - BEAT - - 731 - 731
Net profit for the period S R
attributable to shareholders 7|44 - - = 63,544 63,544
At 31 March 2007 REFELE
=H=1—H 150,409 300 7588 125,824 284,121
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29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. fitifhi (%)
(b) The Company (b) AATH]

Available-for-

sale financial

Share assets reserve Retained
premium A Ak earnings Total
JBe Ay i 15 5B A PR 7 ook
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THTT THT
At 1 January 2005 RN oELHFE—H—H 116,612 = 60,982 177,594
Changes in fair value of  RJ it 8 WA %5 &
available-for-sale AN PEZ B
financial assets = 220 = 220
Loss for the year G| 5] - - (8,406) (8,406)
At 31 December 2005 i == S
+=-H=+—H 116,612 220 52,576 169,408
Issue of shares (Note 28) #¥4THfy (Fff7128) 33,797 = — 33,797
Changes in fair value of ~ RJ{H B A% & i
available-for-sale ISR Z 528
financial assets — 80 - 80
Loss for the period BN R = - (31,725) (31,725)
At 31 March 2007 N EFEEZA=1+—H 150,409 300 20,851 171,560
30. GUARANTEES 30. R
The Company has, for the purpose of application by VXLFS for A3 ) E S5 VXLFS H G AR ZEAR_E i
admission to the list of GEM sponsors under GEM Listing Rules, S R 2 A SRR PR\ 44 LTI [ B S T 4
provided a corporate guarantee to the Stock Exchange to guarantee BEAFIIEDR > OREEH SRRy SO ARBOA
the due and punctual payment of the liabilities of VXLFS up to an H4#10,000,000% 7T Z VXLFSZ B AT ©
aggregate amount of HK$10 million.
The Company provides a guarantee for the mortgage bank loan of an Z /Al i) A UASEIE S < S/ B ki oh o
investment property of a subsidiary amounting to HK$100 million TR HE2£100,000,00035 70 (—FFE H
(2005: HK$77 million). 4+ 77,000,000478) Z R o
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31. COMMITMENTS

(@)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

31. 7R

Operating lease commitments (a) GRS
At 31 March 2007, the Group had commitments under non- MoEELHFE=ZH=1T—H A&
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises, which AR TR S m] R A A 2 DA R
fall due as follows: WA 2 HE Y ARPEINT -
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#L THTT
Not later than 1 year e 3 — A 5,366 3,171
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —4F L FAH ANl %8 FL4F 486 3,198
5,852 6,369
Capital commitments (b) BEAAYE

The Group has 30% effective interest in Cruise City Holdings
Limited (“CCHL”) and its subsidiary, Cruise City (Hong Kong)
Limited, which submitted an Expression of Interest to the HKSAR
Government for the New Cruise Terminal Development in
December 2005. Pursuant to a joint venture agreement dated 8
December 2005, the Company has committed to advancing
approximately HK$3,000,000 to CCHL of which HK$900,000 has
been paid as at 31 March 2007.

Other than as mentioned above, as at 31 March 2007, the Group
has commitments in respect of renovation costs of Changshou
Properties amounting to HK$5,798,000 (31 December 2005:
HK$Nil), which were contracted for but have not been recognized

in these consolidated financial statements.

A4 B Cruise City Holdings
Limited (TCCHLJ) 30% 2 F{ B
g o T PR 2 ) R K (B ) A
RAFAER ZFZRETZHnE
SRR P AT B B 42 58—y S B
BRI H 2 B o IR
FEFAE+ A /NHPET L2 — 15
B hik - AN E AR 1 CCHL#
15 %93,000,000% 75 » H:H1900,000%5
TER-ZFFLF=H=1+—HX
fi e

B Lal &b > o mEBE=H =
T—H > AEERRHEFYEZH
AR 2 AR £45,798,000%5 7T (— %
FHEFTZA=1T—H 1 - HH#
RYEC RIS AH > H M I 55 55
G B IR AR -
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32. FiE G
(a) BEZZFLHE=A=1T—H

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(a) For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007

During the period, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Rich Field International Limited (“Rich Field”) which
has the right to acquire the north and south commercial podiums
of Changshou Properties, located at Shanghai, PRC. Rich Field
acquired the north commercial podium of Changshou Properties
(“North Block”) together with existing tenancies and therefore

the acquisition of North Block constitutes a business combination.

Details of purchase consideration and net assets acquired are as

kT fE A

HATR > AR OO = S A R
A (TEH])) 2 2 BET’RA
A O AR R T 2 R
PrEradu e 2 HER o W ECE R BA
B WER Y 2R (L8] >
B EIA L SE N

WS B A e o WA 7 A A

follows: mr
HK$'000
T

Purchase consideration: WA
— Cash paid or payable — AT A Bl 246,989
— Direct costs of acquisition — BRI AR 11,970
Total purchase consideration s H A 258,959
Fair value of net assets acquired (note) JIT G e v 7 A (E (R ) 350,495
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired JIT A T 2 (R A

over costs of acquisition WA R AS 2 (91,536)

132

Since the cash payments of HK$279 million made during the
period for the acquisition of Changshou Properties were not
earmarked, the cash payments made for the North Block cannot
be separately identified and hence, the cash paid for the acquisition

of North Block is not disclosed in the above table.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a) For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2007
(Continued)

S5 A P

32. FE GO (&)
(a) BE_FRZELF=A=1—H

b+ i A ()
(note)  The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition (BfEE) il Ak 2 e T A i
are as follows: o
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
Fair value U=
AFE Z MR AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Investment property Ei'ae7/ES 397,826 258,959
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 27)  #EFERIIA & 15 (f5127) (47,331) =
Net assets acquired JT W L v A 350,495 258,959

Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over costs of
acquisition of HK$91,536,000 was recognized in the

profit and loss account during the period.

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2005

On 9 September 2005, the Group acquired a block of serviced
apartments located at 112 Chun Yeung Street, North Point,
together with certain furniture and equipment and existing
tenancies. This acquisition constitutes a business combination.
The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$2,641,000 and
operating profit of HK$399,000 and fair value gain of
HK$33,574,000 to the Group for the period from 9 September
2005 to 31 December 2005.

Pl G R R AT
R A A I 1 45 91,536,000
WL SRR MNEE 5R

b) BRE-FFHET_HA=1—

H 1k 4 B

ZEFAFILAIE > AL B
— AR A FEME — A — T
ZRB KA > HE A T - &%
i BB LA o FZ U RS A — TH
E450F - ROEFHFENLANEE
CEERFET A=+ —HIEM
A1 > B2 SO S5 1) A 4 T Rk i 4
2,641,000 75 > 4845 % #11399,000 7
JG KN E L F33,574,00095 TG

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 32. FEAOF (B)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2005 (Continued) (b) BE_FFHFET_A=Z1—
H R4 B (%)
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows: oA i A A X PR R AR AR
HK$'000
T
Purchase consideration: s i AR -
— Cash paid — EAfBE 33,000
— Direct costs of acquisition — HIEBUE A 5,581
— Mortgage loan drawn down — DRBUZIE K 77,000
Total purchase consideration W AR B AR 115,581
Fair value of net assets acquired (note) P i B A (E (B ) 97,267
Goodwill [k 18,314
(note)  Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired (PR BTl s E R B 2 AF
{I=1
HK$’000
T
Investment property i'a-e7ES 109,426
Property, plant and equipment LYE B S AT L] 574
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 27) RFERTH £ 45 (527) (12,733)
Net assets acquired JT B S 97,267
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the period/year:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purchases of services

The Group has contracted with various related parties, which are
corporations controlled by a director of the Company, to provide
management and administrative services to the Group. The
management and administrative fee paid and payable for the
period is HK$342,000 (year ended 31 December 2005:
HK$183,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2005, VXL Financial Services
Limited (“VXLFS”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
engaged Kim Eng Corporate Finance (Hong Kong) Limited
(“KECE”) to provide professional services. Two of VXLFS’s

directors were also directors of KECF.

Sales of services

In the previous financial year, VXLES provided certain professional
services to KECF. The amount received and receivable for the year
ended 31 December 2005 was HK$1,430,000.

Rental charges

During the period, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement
with the landlord, Smart Forward Services Limited, a corporation
owned by a director of the Company, to lease a residential unit at
a monthly rent of HK$55,000 effective from 15 May 2006 for a
period of 2 years. A rental deposit of HK$110,000 has been placed
with the landlord. The rental expense paid and payable for the
period is HK$578,000 (year ended 31 December 2005: HK$Nil).

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

S5 A P

33. B T A2 5
AR 4 A B B B 7 AT 2 32 5 d 4

o

()

S e

AL B C L 2 BT (AR A F—
BE RPN 2 AT FISLEK) > AR
4 W B2 (A B AT BUR R RS -
N BT B A 3 R AT B B
£5342,00087C (B2 — R [LAFE+
A =1+—HIE4ERE : 183,000%70) °

BE-ZFTHFETH=1+—HI
L o AR E) A M A ] A
SRS A PR A (B A SR )
B s SEmE () ARA A
([T E]) B EMF
17T 57 5 S il T 7 5 = S ] I e
EERAEMEER -

FEBE B

AR B o B SE R 1)
A S AR A T IR -
WREZEFERAET_A=+—H
IE A Bk K OME IR AR I A
1,430,00045 G

R4 B 32

HAIA > AS4E B BL 2 F= Smart Forward
Services Limited (FH AS/A Al — 2 HE
WA 2 ) ST —JERLE ok > DA
A FH55,0009 oA & — (A F A -

T RN F A+ H R
By WA o AR 2 ) 3 AT
110,000# el 4% 4 « BN > B4
T B AN 42 BH 52 £9578,00035 70 (2
ZEERAE A = —HIEF
B4 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Interest expenses

During the period, the Group has interest expenses paid and
payable to VXLCPL amounting to HK$3,572,000 for the loan as
disclosed in Note 26 (year ended 31 December 2005: HK$Nil).

(e) Key management compensation

33. Bl 2 5 (8)

(d) FEBHX

A > AR RE26 BT IR 2 Bk et
KA VXLCPLZ F1| 5 B 52 £53,572,000
Bt BME_FFRFET_A=+T—HIE
AERE ¢ ) o

(e) FEE BG4

1/1/2006 to 1/1/2005 to
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
1/1/2006% 1/1/2005%
31/3/2007 31/12/2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THTT
Salaries and other short-term employee S S HCAh 4 1] 5 AR R
benefits 11,727 5,874
Pension costs — defined contribution plan  # fR4 BiAs — & B LR 100 59
Others Hofth 1,233 570
13,060 6,503
34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 34. HAEAFERHRFIH

DATE

(@)

On 14 May 2007, bank loan facilities of HK$384 million have been
obtained to finance the acquisition and refurbishment of
Changshou Properties, which consist of a mortgage loan of
HK$307 million and a renovation loan of HK$77 million. On 26
June 2007, a bank loan of HK$131 million has been drawn down
for the partial settlement of the balance payable for acquisition of
Changshou Properties. Such mortgage loan is secured by the
south commercial podium of Changshou Properties (“South
Block”), interest-bearing at 7.2% per annum and repayable in

seven years.
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(@ M-ZEZLFAA+NUH > #EZ—
JE384,000,000 %5 0.2 $R1T B3R %K
e MERIE R REMEZE
4 Hh e SR 48 £3K307,000,000
W50 KB R 3K77,000,00045 TG © i
TEELENH AN BR—
JH 4 %F7£131,000,000 45 70 Z $RAT ¢
Ao DMEAT AR 7 U = 75 1 S AT
ZEREE o RIS K AR R 3
I (TR D) VR BT - DUAR A %6
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE (Continued)

(b) On 18 May 2007, the Company entered into a conditional

(©

agreement to sell the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary,
VXLEFS, for a consideration of HK$11 million. The profit on
disposal of VXLFS is estimated to be approximately HK$1 million.
Following the completion of the disposal, the Group will
discontinue its financial services operation while the operation of

property investment and securities investment will continue.

On 8 June 2007, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire
11 hotel properties from China Post Group Limited for an
aggregate consideration of RMB176 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$181 million). The 11 hotel properties are
located in the Gansu, Jilin, Shandong, Sichuan, Xinjiang, Hubei
and Shaanxi provinces of the PRC. Subsequent to 31 March 2007,
deposits totaling USD6.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$54 million and representing approximately 30% of the total
consideration) has been placed to Shanghai United Assets and
Equity Exchange, an organization approved by the Shanghai
Municipal Government which serves as a comprehensive platform
for assets and equity transactions. The acquisition will be
completed upon fulfillment of all necessary registration procedures
with relevant government authorities in the PRC in respect of the
transfer of the title of the hotel properties. The remaining balance
of the consideration, together with interest calculated at the
applicable interest rate, shall be payable upon completion or on

31 December 2007, whichever is the earlier.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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34. B A AR AR FIH ()

(b)

©

WZEELFERA+/ANH > AATH
FIOL — 0 A MR A B R o DA AR
11,000,000% 75 H B B 55 /> 7] 2 B
ERE BT BATIRA o ML &
B SE RV 2 5 A 49 551,000,000
Wt o sZTH I B AR - AR HE
KL HESRIRE R > MYERE
il 5 1 SR I A A o

R ZERLEANHNH - AL
SR MLARRE AR
176,000,0007T (#14H5 14 181,000,000
iEymEn BT Ei e SUPACINE bl
TTEWZE o 5% 11N 5 3607 1
BECH AR AR - R i
i WAL R A E o —EE LA
=A=+—H%  546,900,0003%
JG (#IHH 5 17454,000,000%5 70 K £ 4k
HAREZ30%) Z e B AERUR L1
Wi EERESC G T o LG FERESS
5y i & — 8] e b 1 7 B HE HE RSz
R - AE R R RIREE RS ) 2 5%
BB o % IE I T B e R S
TG 5 4 S SEREAT R T 2 AR B v
R M 3 2 P A 0 B8 e T4
HIRATE SN o ARUE AR AT R AR L [R]
i ) et 5 2 FI)LE JR E 52 AR
HoFEEEFTH=+—H UK
RLE R HE) AT -

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE (Continued)

(d) On 21 June 2007, the Board proposed a conditional subdivision

(e)

of every one existing ordinary share of HK$0.20 each into twenty
new ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each (“Subdivided Shares”) in
the share capital of the Company. Upon the subdivision becoming
effective, the existing board lot size for trading will also be changed
from 1,000 existing ordinary shares to 10,000 Subdivided Shares

upon the subdivision becoming effective.

On 21 June 2007, the Board also proposed, upon the subdivision
becoming effective, a conditional bonus issue of warrants to
qualifying shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 6 August 2007 on the basis of one
warrant for every five Subdivided Shares held on 6 August 2007.
Each warrant will entitle the holder thereof to subscribe in cash
for one Subdivided Share at the initial subscription price of
HK$0.95 per Subdivided Share upon exercise of any subscription
rights attaching to the warrant, subject to adjustment, at any time

during a term of two years from the date of issue.

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements on pages 62 to 138 were approved by the

board of directors on 19 July 2007.
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@ R-FFLHFEANA-+—H #F
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@RI — R (E0.204 T2
BUA % 8 AR AN 2 — T e B
0.0THETCZ B A 1% (TR )) 2
BT AP B PR 4 o FR I
YRR % > BN T & A
IR 1, 000 BB A K 78 i B B
10,000 AR A A5 <

BEFELFEAA _+—H > #F
IR > BRI AR >
A ZEZEENANHZFIR S
2 5 B B 1 35 AT AL R
Mt - BELN —ETLENA
AN H R A 0B A B0 T A B —
iR I HERE © 45 1 o SO HERE I il
HAs A AHER > TR 84T H AR R
A IRAE AR IRy ] > AT ol 2 BB 5
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“AGM(s)”
[ BSR4 ]

“Articles of Association”

[ CHHARFEAR AN A |
“Associate(s)”
1IN

“Board”

[EHE]

“CG Code”
[{ERETR TR ]

“Changshou Properties”
R 2/ES

“Company” or “VXL Capital”
(722 ) ) B[

“Companies Ordinance”
[ ) |

“Directors”

[

“EGM”
(BSR4 7 K ]

“GEM”
FES A

“GEM Listing Rules”
[R2EAR T AR )

“Group”
(A5 M)

//HK$//
[t

“HKICPA”
[ et 6]

Glossary
A

Annual general meetings of the Company

AN R BOR R AE R g

The Articles of Association of the Company
A F B CRLAR AR AT I

Has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules unless otherwise specified in the financial
statements

FACETTARAD BT T A0 > BB RN A A€ 1 i U BR A

The board of Directors
HHE

Code of Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

T AR Bk PO BT bR KSR B3 A< Al

The North Block and South Block of the property development known as Changshou
Commercial Plaza situated in the Putuo District in Shanghai, the PRC
7 7 H R 3 [ 44 7 15 35 TR B 5 1 A e R ) S

VXL Capital Limited
L AT BR A 7]

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended from time
to time

AL =+ TR A RRED GEARRERD)

Directors of the Company

AAFES

Extraordinary general meeting of the Company

LA VN

Growth Enterprise Market of Stock Exchange
WSS BT 2 R AR

The Rules governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
Bt 38 BT 1) AR 8 25 L T A

The Company and its subsidiaries

AN ) B HL R A R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
I BEHIEE B

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Rl S NI

o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Glossary (Continued)

W
“Hong Kong”
[
“Listing Rules”
[CETTRLA |
“Model Code”
[CREYESF A |

“PRC”
[ 12 )

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
DN

“SFO”
[ Gt B B el |

“Shares”

[ets ]

“Scheme”

[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[

“Stock Exchange”
(B A2 |

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
s

“VXLIL”

[ 8 o R AH B A B ]

“VXL Partners” or “VXLCPL”

[VXL Partners] 8% [VXLCPL]

*  foridentification only

1EAL ]

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Hh 3\ R A0 8 7 4 A 1 77 I [

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from
time to time

R B 52 i TR ) KT B T 6 58 2 T AT R w05 E TR (RERRFERT)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules
T AR B 8 B T 34T A B ST RE 7 50 2 B BRHE ST I

The Peoples” Republic of China
e RILAEY

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
ANRHE  hEkE &

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended
from time to time

AL I -+ — 20 G B HRAD EERRERD)

Ordinary share(s) of HK$0.20 each in the share capital of the Company
A% A A g F T EL0. 2098 TG (9 48 i

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5 June 2005
AN TR TR LTS A T H BRAN I B R

Holder(s) of Share(s)
SUESEPN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
A I 5 20 2 B A R )

Has the meaning ascribed to in Schedule I to the SFO
FLA GBS BB G B — BTt 7 1 T 3%

VXL International Leasing Company Limited*, a limited company incorporated in PRC in
which the Company indirectly held 45% of equity interests as at 31 March 2007
HMEEHERRAR > —HRPRBCLZARBERF > AARR-FFLFE=ZH=
T BMERA A2 W+ B2 AR

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and a controlling Shareholder of the Company

JST A 35 B A T 5 A 55 4% S5 VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited 23 7 & A2 A Y
PR
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Financial Summary

W B G 2
The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the A [ A B 20 A1 B O ] 2 5 45 SE ARt o
last five financial periods. e
1/4/2002to  1/4/2003to  1/1/2004 to  1/1/2005to  1/1/2006 to
31/3/2003 31/12/2003 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 31/3/2007
1/4/2002% 1/4/2003% 1/1/2004% 1/1/2005% 1/1/2006 %
31/3/2003 31/12/2003 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 31/3/2007
(Restated) (Restated)
(B8 %) (B 51)
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
THETT THETT THTT THE T T
Turnover e | 27,442 7,274 3,739 11,819 33,939
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB, (B 1) 201,494 7,291 (7,396) 9,860 52,337
Taxation (charge)/credit (L) Kb (1,656) (207) 1,247 (5,793) 11,207
Profit/(loss) attributable to JE SR
shareholders Wil (ks 199,838 7,084 (6,149) 4,067 63,544

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as

AEFR_FF=F=A=1+—H ZFF

M

at 31 March 2003, 31 December 2003, 2004 and 2005, and 31 March 2007. A ZERBPE R ZFEE R H = +—H
AR —EELAEZH =+ —H 2 EE R AR
FEAERL IR o

31/3/2003  31/12/2003  31/12/2004  31/12/2005 31/3/2007

HK$000 HK$/000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Tt T-H#s T T o0 Tt RN

Total assets Y AR 193,779 196,916 190,293 300,505 994,971
Total liabilities A EE (2,228) (1,542) (1,068) (106,993) (695,570)

Shareholders’ funds JRe R 4 191,551 195,374 189,225 193,512 299,401
o 4 LA BR A F O 2006/2007 A
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Shareholders’ Information

SRR

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2007 AGM will be held on Wednesday 22 August 2007 at 2:30 p.m. at
Suite 2707-8, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong. Details of the 2007 AGM including shareholders’ right to demand a
poll are set out in the Notice of 2007 AGM sent to the Shareholders together
with a proxy form along with this Annual Report.

SHARE-RELATED SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Share Registrars:—

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Telephone: +852 3168 2588
Facsimile: +852 3168 2599
INVESTOR INFORMATION

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information
of the Company are available online at the Company’s website,

www.vxlcapital.com.

FINANCIAL CALENDER 2007

Announcement of 2006-7 final results 19 July 2007
2007 AGM 22 August 2007
Announcement of 2007-8 interim results December 2007

COMPANY’S MARKET CAPITALIZATION

(i) HK$590.6 million as at period end, based on closing price of HK$7.73
per Share on 30 March 2007; and

(i) HK$1,642.6 million as at date of this Annual Report, based on closing
price of HK$21.50 per Share on 19 July 2007.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2006/2007
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JBA3 R B Ik 5
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n3d FE Rl
HFE B it e #énam&/\i
Hidik T AT 2 5 KB R 1835%
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WITHEIE > PMRA 2 T E 590,600,000
I 5 K
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2150 TCETEE » AR H 2 T (E 2
1,642,600,000% 7T ©



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (Chairman)
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO

(Group President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi (Financial Controller)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fej, J.P.
Mr. David YU Hon To

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO (Chairman)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Ms. Patsy SO Ying Chi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.

Mr. David YU Hon To

REMUNERATION, QUALITY AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. (Chairman)
Mr. Percy ARCHAMBAUD-CHAO
Mr. Michael YEE Kim Shing

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

Mr. David YU Hon To

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ada MAK Yuk Ling
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Corporate Information (Continued)

N EVER

QUALITIED ACCOUNTANT

Ms. YAU Yue Ka

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suite 2707-8, One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Credit Agricole (Suisse) S.A.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Ordinary Shares (Stock Code: 727)
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